
There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on 01733 452508 as soon as possible.

AB
SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES

TUESDAY 10 MARCH 2015
7.00 PM

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration.

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2015 3 - 8

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is 
published and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the 
expiry of 3 working days after the publication of the decision (not including 
the date of publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is 
received from any two Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny 
Commissions..  If a request for call-in of a decision is received, 
implementation of the decision remains suspended for consideration by the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee or Commission.

5. Public Health Delivery and Commissioning Work Across the 
Communities Directorate

9 - 32

6. Adult Social Care - One Year On 33 - 38

7. Adult Social Care and Public Health - 2014/15 Performance Report 39 - 52

8. Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group 
Performance Report

53 - 120

9. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 121 - 144

Public Document Pack



Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take 
photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the 
public. A protocol on this facility is available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%
20Recording.pdf

Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Committee Members:

Councillors: B Rush (Chairman), J Stokes (Vice Chairman), S Allen, R Ferris, N Shabbir, K Sharp 
and A Shaheed

Substitutes: Councillors: Sylvester, D Fower, R Herdman and M Lee

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone 01733 
452508 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

%5Cdemapp01
%5Cdemapp01


AB
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES 

HELD IN THE BOURGES / VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL
ON 8 JANUARY 2015

Present: Councillors B Rush (Chairman), J Stokes,  S Allen,  R Herdman,
R Ferris,  and Shabbir

Also present Keith Spencer
Sandra Myers

Dr Arnold Fertig

Dr Andrew Anderson
Jessica Bawden
Lynn Rodrigues

David Whiles

Chief Executive, UnitingCare Partnership
Integrated Solution Lead, UnitingCare 
Partnership
CCG Clinical Lead, Older Peoples 
Service
CCG Clinical Lead, NHS 111
Director of Corporate Affairs, C&PCCG
Lead Nurse for Infection Prevention & 
Control and Patient Experience
Healthwatch

Officers Present: Jana Burton

Mubarak Darbar

Julie Bennett
Paulina Ford

Executive Director of Adult Social Care 
and Health and Wellbeing
Head of Commissioning Learning 
Disabilities and Autism, Communities
Interim Transformation Manager ASC
Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Sharp and Councillor Shaheed.  
Councillor Herdman was in attendance as substitute for Councillor Sharp.

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 

There were no declarations of interest or whipping declarations.

3. Minutes of Meetings Held on 14 October and 11 November 2014.

The minutes of the meetings held on 14 October and 11 November 2014 were approved as 
an accurate record.

4. Call-in of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

There were no requests for Call-in to consider.

5. UnitingCare Partnership

The report was introduced by the Clinical Commissioning Group’s Clinical Lead for the Older 
Peoples Service and provided a brief summary of the procurement process for the integrated 
older people’s healthcare and adult community services.  The Chief Executive of UnitingCare 
Partnership (UCP) was then introduced and the Commission were given a short presentation 
on the UnitingCare Partnership which highlighted the following key points:

3



 Structure and purpose of UCP:
• An NHS led partnership (CUH & CPFT) of NHS, Third and Private Sector 

organisations to bid for the OPACS procurement 
• A limited liability partnership (LLP) set up and owned by CPFT and CUH to deliver the 

Adults and Older Persons contract
• Fulfils the role of lead provider/system integrator required by the CCG
• What's different?: It is a provider vehicle with commissioning capability:

o Holds the contract for the entire pathway with the CCG
o Holds and manages the contracts with each sub-contractors in 

the pathway
o Ensure that the system works in an integrated fashion across 

organisational boundaries: Driving cultural change 
o Ensuring the necessary improvements to the care delivered to 

our patients, monitored through agreed patient centred 
outcome metrics

 The roll of the integrator
 The Service Model and its  key principles

• Care that is personalised, joined up and co-ordinated around patients 
• Promoting community resilience, self-management and choice
• Supporting front line teams to deliver flexible, tailored care based on relationships 

and finding solutions rather than processes
• Functionally integrated, co-located, multi-disciplinary working  including  aligned 

social care built around Neighbourhoods
• Aligned model to proactively manage complex cases through case management 

and care co-ordination 
• 24/7 Rapid Response to crisis
• Aligned outcomes

 Information on Integrated Community Services
 The key mobilisation milestones

• Commence transition and mobilisation phase – November 2014
• Board/Governors sign off of business case – January 2014
• Monitor assessment –  January  to March 2015
• Service commencement – April 2015
• Full service implementation – September 2015

Observations and questions were raised and discussed including:

• Members referred to the 18 Integrated Neighbourhoods and four Community Teams and 
sought clarification on the size of an Integrated Neighbourhood and how they would be 
formed.  Members were advised that consideration was given to the following:  the 
population base, what a reasonable number of people would be, locality, deprivation scores 
and population by age.  The next stage was to look at where the bases were already and 
looking at locality issues.

• How many people would be in each of the neighbourhood teams?  Approximately 35 to 40 
people per team.  Each team will have flexibility built in to ensure there was continual cover 
of service.  

• How will the 24/7 Rapid Response Service work in the rural areas?  Members were 
informed that a number of models had been looked at and advised that there would be a 
number of teams working through a single point of co-ordination.  Four teams would be put 
in place on day one and this would be monitored as to how effective they were.

• Why was it a five year contract?  Members were informed that historically the NHS had run 
one year contracts but this did not allow time for profound strategic change.  The changes 
that had to be made would take longer than twelve months and a five year contract gave 
the provider the time needed to make the long term changes.

• Was there a percentage limit on the amount of work UnitingCare could sub contract.  
Members would informed that there were no limits on sub-contracting work to other 
providers.  

4



• Members were concerned that unless people had community venues to go to the service 
model could fail and felt that better use of community centres would be beneficial.   
Members were advised that UnitingCare would be looking at the community centres they 
had responsibility for and better integration of community services.

• The community model will need more staff, how will you go about recruiting staff so that you 
are fully staffed from day one of operation.  Members were informed that there was a bigger 
group of people to pool resources from and would be able to offer more flexible working.  
There would be more opportunities for staff to develop in their profession which would 
make it a more attractive role.  £1M would be invested in training.  The recruitment process 
would be done in partnership with other organisations. 

• Members sought clarification as to whether the service would be able to operate from 1st 
April.  Members were advised that the service would be up and running from 1st April but 
there would be certain functions that would be phased in.  All elements would be in place 
but it would take six to twelve months before it was fully operational.

• The Commission would need assurance that the service was working.  How do you 
propose to report to the Commission?  Members were informed that quarterly reports would 
be provided to the Commission.  There was also a newsletter that would be issued 
fortnightly.

• Was the proposed model of service delivery being used anywhere else in the country?  
Members were informed that every aspect of the model was based on evidence that it 
works.  The difference is the scale of the model and that each aspect has been put together 
into one model.

• Have you forecasted to see if this model if future proof.  Members were advised that the 
model had been based on evidence of today regarding population growth however it could 
not be predicted what the health care service would look like in five years’ time.  The model 
had been built to allow local services to make changes and to come up with new ideas to 
change.  The partnership had an outcomes framework and there was a commitment to 
review those outcomes yearly.  

• Was the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Health and Wellbeing clear about the 
role of the council in this model?  The Executive Director responded that there was an 
ongoing developing process in place and the council had been part of this ongoing process. 
 

• Where are your offices based?  Members were informed that currently the offices were in 
temporary accommodation in Fulbourn however from the 1st April it was intended that there 
would be UnitingCare people at each of the four localities; Peterborough, Ely, Cambridge 
and Fenland to ensure a local presence.

The Chair thanked the Chief Executive, UnitingCare Partnership for attending and answering 
questions from the Commission.

ACTIONS AGREED

The Commission noted the report and requested that a quarterly report be provided to the 
Commission during the first year of operation.

6. Transforming Day Opportunities for Adults Under 65

The Head of Commissioning Learning Disabilities and Autism, Communities introduced the 
report which was presented to the Commission as part of the consultation process.

Observations and questions were raised and discussed including:

 Members referred to page 23, paragraph 5.4 and the bullet point: “Enabling people to 
access services locally without the need to undertake lengthy journeys from pick up points 
around the city”.   Members wanted to know how this would be dealt with.  Members were 
informed that community based satellites would be based across Peterborough to provide 
the right services and infrastructure locally to ensure people did not have to travel far.

5



 Have you identified where the satellite centres will be.  Members were informed that the 
design group which included parents, service users and staff had looked at a number of 
areas and had an idea of where the satellite centres could be, taking into account 
demographics and where people requiring the services were living however the final 
decisions will be in agreement with the new provider, service users, family carers and staff.

 Members commented that the satellite centres should be spread evenly throughout the city.
 Members referred to the statement that “those adults with complex needs that currently use 

the Fletton Day Centre would move to the Kingfisher Day Centre”.  Members were 
concerned that those people may not be comfortable with change and may not like the new 
centre.  What would happen if this were the case.  Members were informed that the staff 
from Fletton Day Centre would also move to the Kingfisher Day Centre which would provide 
continuity of service for service users. Part of the strategy was to reduce dependency on 
building based service and provide accessible local services for people with complex 
needs.

 Members were concerned that providers may base the satellite locations on cost rather 
than location and accessibility.  Members were advised that there would be a very strong 
parent, carer and service user involvement in the contract.  It was a partnership and 
although there would be an independent provider the council would be involved as a 
commissioner.

 Members were concerned about staff retention and if the staff would be kept on by the new 
provider.  Members were advised that the 62 (FTE) staff would TUPE over to the new 
provider. The contract would be monitored and managed once the new provider was found.

 Members commented that for some users this would not be a suitable model and sought 
reassurance that those people with very complex needs would be looked after.  Members 
were advised that it was recognised that there were people with very complex needs and 
the council would work with the new provider to ensure those service users were supported 
in accordance with their needs. 

 Members referred to employment related skills and opportunities and wanted to know what 
sort of opportunities there were.  Members were informed that there were a number of 
different enterprises being considered including PAT Testing and horticulture e.g. 
allotments to grow and sell produce.

 Members were informed that consultation had commenced and would end in February and 
had been made available in different formats and accessibility.

 Members were provided with an explanation of Appendix A the Risk Scoring tables.
 Members asked what LA LOCO stood for.  Members were informed that it was an 

organisation that a Local Authority would set up.
 When can we see the new service up and running? Members were informed that it would 

be in August.

ACTION AGREED

The Commission noted the report. 

7.    Consultation on a Future Model for NHS 111 and GP Out of Hours Services

The report was introduced by the Director of Corporate Affairs, C&PCCG and provided the 
Commission with information on the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical 
Commissioning Groups consultation on the Out of Hours and NHS 111 service.

Observations and questions were raised and discussed including:

 Members commented that there had been a lot on the news about the NHS111 service and 
people being sent to A & E.  What level of training is provided for the NHS111 staff?  
Members were informed that the NHS111 service was a computer algorithm for use by 
non-clinicians and was therefore risk averse.  A GP had now been introduced into the call 
centre to screen calls that might have otherwise been referred to A & E and this had 

6



reduced the number of referrals to A & E by 75%.  Peterborough had the lowest referral 
rate to A & E from a 111 service.

 Members referred to the Common Assessment process at walk in sites and the decision to 
run pilots.  What will be the indicators of success for the pilots? Members were informed 
that there were different types of pilots running at the different hospitals.  Success would 
be how effectively the front door will be able to treat people and not send them into A & E 
and also the cost savings.  

 Have you considered using the NHS111 and GP Out of Hours service on a wider basis for 
minor injuries and A & E services to see if there would be benefits from wider integration?  
Members were informed that NHS111 did send people to all of those places.  Going forward 
there was a need to look at unscheduled care and getting people to the right place.  The 
NHS111 service had a directory of all the services for all ailments where people could get 
treatment. Part of the procurement would be to ask the Out of Hours provider and the 
NHS111 service within the specification to do more minor injury work.

 Have you considered using different technologies so that patients can be seen virtually for 
example via skype?  Members were informed that this was not being considered within the 
remit of the NHS111 and Out of Hours GP service.  However this may be considered for 
the 8 till 8 GP Service.

 Members commented that a number of people had reported not being able to make an 
appointment with their GP when they wanted to.  Will the Primary Care service improve in 
the future or is it the intention that the NHS111 service will expand to take its place.  
Members were informed that each doctor’s practice operated a different service.  Patient’s 
expectations were that they should be seen immediately.  If the patient was an emergency 
then they would always be seen quickly.  The challenge was to help people to navigate the 
health service properly and be signposted to the correct place.

The Chair thanked the CCG Clinical Lead for the NHS111 service for attending and responding 
to questions and for an interesting and informative report.

ACTION AGREED

The Commission noted the report.

8. Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group’s Response to the     
Francis Review Recommendations

The report was introduced by the Director of Corporate Affairs, C&PCCG which provided the 
Commission with the CCG’s response to the implementation of the Francis recommendations.

Observations and questions were raised and discussed including:

 Members referred to recommendation 1, “The Governing Body be advised of the update as 
part of a progress report.  This should include an assessment as to whether the CCG has 
fulfilled its role, particularly in respect of all the ‘Warning Signs’ such as Whistleblowers 
that have been referred to in presentations”.  Members noted in the findings that “it was 
noted in testing that most evidence in support of the ‘warning signs’ have been obtained 
but not all”.  What can be done to stop this occurring and how can you ensure consistent 
responses.   The Lead Nurse for Infection Prevention & Control and Patient Experience 
responded that a Quality Dashboard was being used with providers which was updated 
annually.  This went into a lot more detail regarding expectations of them.  There was also 
monthly clinical quality review meetings with the providers.

 Given the Francis report recommendations and the amount of pressure the hospital is 
under how assured are you about the quality of patient care from all of your providers.  
Members were informed that regular unannounced visits took place over a twelve month 
period to all providers.  A report was then completed and the findings reported back to the 
provider.  If areas of concern were found then the provider would be visited on a more 

7



regular basis and an action plan put in place which would be monitored through the Quality 
Dashboard and clinical quality review meetings.

 How many providers are there?  There were 13 independent providers.
 Have the providers taken on board the Francis report recommendations. Members were 

advised that they had taken them on board and action plans had been put in place.

The Chair thanked the Lead Nurse for Infection Prevention & Control and Patient Experience 
for attending the meeting and responding to questions.

ACTION AGREED

The Commission noted the report. 

9. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

The Commission received the latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions, 
containing Executive Decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or 
individual Cabinet Members would make during the course of the following four months.  
Members were invited to comment on the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions and, where 
appropriate, identify any relevant areas for inclusion in the Commission’s work programme.

ACTION AGREED

The Commission noted the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

10. Work Programme 2014/2015

Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2014/15 and discussed possible 
items for inclusion.

The Senior Governance Officer informed the Commission that some Councillors had 
requested that the Scrutiny in a Day – One Year On event which had been scheduled for 27 
February in the afternoon should be moved to an evening event to allow more people to attend. 
 As the event would only run for three hours this would be possible.  The Senior Governance 
Officer sought the committee’s views on this.

Members requested that a report be brought to the Commission on the performance of Public 
Health.

Members requested that the Suicide Prevention strategy be circulated to Members of the 
Commission.

ACTIONS AGREED

1. To confirm the work programme for 2014/15 and the Senior Governance Officer to include 
any additional items as requested during the meeting.

2. The Committee agreed that the Scrutiny in a Day – One Year on Event could be held in the 
evening.

3. The Suicide Prevention Strategy to be circulated to members of the Commission.

The meeting began at 7.00pm and finished at 9.23pm CHAIRMAN

8



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 5

10 MARCH 2015 Public Report

Report of the Leader of the Council, Councillor Marco Cereste and Cabinet 
Advisor for Health, Councillor Diane Lamb 

Report Author –   Wendi Ogle-Welbourn Director of Communities
Contact Details – Tel: 01733 863749     Email: Wendi.Ogle-Welbourn@peterborough.gov.uk

PUBLIC HEALTH DELIVERY AND COMMISSIONING WORK ACROSS THE COMMUNITIES 
DIRECTORATE

1. PURPOSE

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide members of the Health Committee with an overview of the 
Communities Directorate public health work.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the committee scrutinise the content of this report and comment on the public health work 
undertaken by the Communities Directorate.

3. BACKGROUND
 

3.1.1 In December 2014 the Communities Directorate took on a number of public health 
commissioning and delivery responsibilities, this has enabled the embedding of public health 
responsibilities to be integrated into the wider work of the council and its partners. 
  

4. KEY ISSUES

4.1 Free NHS Health Check Programme

4.1.1 The Free NHS Health Check programme is a public health programme in England for eligible 
people aged 40-74.  It is a risk assessment and management programme to prevent or delay the 
onset of major non-communicable disease such as heart disease, stroke, diabetes, kidney 
disease, certain cancers and respiratory disease.

4.1.2 The 25 General Practices operating within Peterborough were commissioned for 2013/14 - 
2014/15 to deliver health checks to 20% (9800) of the registered population aged between 40-74 
years (population eligible 49,046). Clinical coaching support and promotional support was 
provided to all practices. The programme is delivered as part of the services delivered by the 
Housing and Health Improvement team covering referrals from GP practices for weight 
management, stop smoking services and physical activity programmes. The programme is 
currently rated best ‘performing in the East of England’ for the number of completed health 
checks from the eligible population based on the Quarter 2 performance. In addition the 
Peterborough programme is rated in the top 20% of the 152 Counties and Unitary authorities.

4.2 Stop Smoking Service

4.2.1 We currently have 21 pharmacies and 12 GP practices on Local Incentivisation Scheme (LIS) 
contracts across Peterborough with trained National Centre for Smoking Cessation and Training 
(NCSCT) Level Two advisors who deliver 121 stop smoking clinics. Each clinic has a target 
based on their smoking prevalence population. In addition there are nine further clinics within GP 
practices delivered by the core team (Live Healthy Advisors) as well as 3 clinics at Peterborough 
Hospital and 5 community based clinics. Two hospital clinics are specifically aimed at patients 

9

mailto:Wendi.Ogle-Welbourn@peterborough.gov.uk


with respiratory and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) which means they are at 
higher risk or have cardio vascular disease (CVD). A third clinic is located in Outpatients. An 
action plan is in place with The Cavell Centre and the Recovery College to work with mental 
health clients. An NCSCT trained advisor is now working with community based patients with 
moderate mental health conditions. The advisor is adopting a holistic approach to health and 
wellbeing in addition to offering 121 stop smoking cessation interventions. These patients are at 
“high risk” of CVD due to high rates of smoking, lack of exercise and lack of awareness about 
healthy eating. A business plan has been developed focusing on targeting pregnant women 
through investing in a midwife trained smoke free champion to get a 100% referral rate, meeting 
NICE guidance. 

4.2.2 The National Referral System is a whole hospital approach to supporting patients to stop 
smoking. It facilitates and encourages staff to ask and record smoking status for every patient, to 
deliver 30 second ‘very brief advice’ (VBA) and to generate electronic referrals on to local stop 
smoking support. The existing hospital IT system is used to make patient referrals, making it a 
straightforward and time-efficient activity, sorting patient details by postcode and referring them 
on to local stop smoking support. The National Centre for Smoking Cessation and Training 
(NCSCT) was commissioned to implement the National Referral System in Peterborough and 
Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. The electronic referral system and the Visual Basics 
for Appliance (VBA) online training were launched in July 2013.

4.3 Adult and Child Weight Management Programmes

4.3.1 Let’s Get Moving (LGM) is a FREE 10 week programme with 2 physical activity and education 
sessions a week. LGM is a physical activity care pathway originally developed by the Department 
of Health, validated by Loughborough University and recommended by the National Institute for 
Health and Clinical Excellence. This programme supports inactive patients/clients aged 16+ with 
a medical or long term health condition, encourages them to set realistic and achievable personal 
PA goals. Centred on evidence based motivational interviewing techniques, LGM explores the 
personal barriers that patients may have to getting active and supports them to make a plan that 
matters to them. 

4.3.2   All our programmes in Peterborough abide by the guidelines set out in the Department of Health’s 
National Quality Assurance Framework for Exercise Referral Schemes with the aim of improving 
standards. Guidance covers issues including patient selection, evaluation and long-term follow-
up. This ensures high standards and effective partnerships between health professionals, 
exercise professionals and patients. 

4.3.3   Morelife Club is a FREE 10 week programme offered to 5-17 who are struggling to maintain a 
healthy weight. One parent or guardian must attend with their child. There are 9 community 
programmes planned for 2014/15 targeting 135 children/young people. Referrals are received 
from health professionals and families can also self-refer. Each weekly session is two hours long 
and is divided into two parts, a one-hour lifestyle session and a one-hour physical activity 
session. In the lifestyle session you will learn about how to make positive food choices and how 
to develop healthy lifestyle habits. The lifestyle sessions are designed to be interactive, hands on 
and most importantly, fun. The physical activity sessions involve a range of activities such as 
crazy cricket and dodge ball, both parents and clubbers participate in these sessions which are 
full of energy, laughter and team spirit. 

4.4. Events and Campaigns

4.4.1 The Public Health team deliver a range of campaigns and events throughout the year promoting 
healthy lifestyle messages and referring into lifestyle services i.e. stop smoking and physical 
activity. Public Health England provide a calendar of events and access to resources which are 
locally agreed. In addition Public Health staff attend events arranged by local organisations.

10



4.5 Accredited Training Courses

4.5.1 The Public Health Team offer a range of vocational one day accredited courses in the areas of 
Healthy Lifestyle and Wellbeing.  The Royal Society of Public Health level 1 and level 2 
qualifications are taken over one full day with a short multi choice exam at the end of the day.
Courses include topics such as Health Awareness, Understanding Health Improvement, Healthier 
Food and Special Diets, Understanding Behaviour Change and Mental Health and Wellbeing. 
The courses can be taken as a stand-alone exam or as a part of our programme to become a 
workplace, youth or community health champion.  These accredited courses are useful for a wide 
range of interests that include anyone interested in health as well as those who work with the 
public in a healthcare/community role. The PH team are delivering accredited courses within the 
Prison, community and school settings and working with vulnerable clients groups.

4.6 Youth Health Champions

4.6.1 The Youth Health Champion project is aimed at young people between the ages of 15-24 years. 
The focus of this project is to educate young people about lifestyle risks to health and provide 
safe signposting information about local services for health and wellbeing. Youth health 
champions, also known as YHCs, work with young people in their school, academy or 
community. They provide help and support to their peers to become healthy, active and enjoy a 
more positive frame of mind by adapting healthier lifestyles. YHCs work closely with the Public 
Health (PH) team to organise events and activities promoting national health promotion 
campaigns.  We currently have 30 active volunteer youth health champions working within 
school, community and youth settings.

  
4.7 Workplace Health Programme

4.7.1 We are working in collaboration with businesses and organisations across the city, to help them 
support their workforces to adopt healthier lifestyles. Our programme is based on the Workplace 
Health Champion model, whereby we train and support individuals from within the workforce to 
deliver healthy lifestyle messages, events and campaigns to their colleagues. 

4.7.2   For example, following staff surveys and health MOTs last year, Perkins Engines have identified a 
need to promote heart health within their workforce. Workplace Health Champions (WHCs) within 
the Occupational Health Team organised and delivered a Health Fayre on 30th July (One Life, 
Live it) which was attended by 650 employees. 

4.7.3  We currently have 2 WHCs who are Level 3 qualified Health Trainers, who work with their 
colleagues at Peterborough City Hospital and Axiom Housing. 

4.7.4   The @one Alliance is a collaborative, virtual joint venture formed to deliver the large part of the 
Anglian Water capital investment programme. The Alliance is made up of seven partner 
companies; Anglian Water, Balfour Beatty Utility Solutions, Barhale, Black and Veatch, Grontmij, 
MWH and Skanska Aker Solutions. The first 6 Workplace Health Champions have been trained 
to L2 Understanding Health Improvement and have subsequently requested that the L2 
Understanding Behaviour change course also be delivered. With the WHCs, in September we 
have been asked to attend their ‘Stand down Day’ - a 3 day event which will deliver healthy 
lifestyle messages to 3000 staff at the East of England Showground.

4.8 Healthy Child Programme (HCP)

4.8.1 The HCP is the early intervention and prevention public health programme that lies at the heart of 
our universal service for children and families at the crucial stages of life, the HCP’s universal 
reach provides an invaluable opportunity to identify families that are in need of additional support 
and children who are at risk of poor outcomes.  The HCP includes input from all partners working 
within universal services and includes midwives, health visitors, children centres and early 
support services, GPs, schools and school nurses. The HCP offers every family a programme of 
screening tests, immunisations, developmental reviews and information and guidance to support 

11



parenting and healthy choices – all services that children and families need to receive if they are 
to achieve their optimum health and wellbeing.

 4.8.2   Immunisation Programmes  

From April 2013, Screening and Immunisation programmes have been commissioned by NHS 
England as per a Public Health agreement under section 7A of the 2006 NHS Act as inserted into 
the Health and Social Care Act 2012. Generally the uptake for childhood immunisations in 
Peterborough is lower than East Anglia in all quarters 20013/14 and 20014/15 to date for all age 
cohorts and most immunisations. The target for childhood immunisation uptake is 95%. 

A multi-agency Task and Finish group is being convened to try to find solutions to increase 
uptake of immunisations and address the inequalities in uptake of childhood immunisations in 
inner city practices and deprived populations particularly with Prenatal Pertussis, Meningitis C. 
and Preschool booster. It is planned to report initial findings and recommendations to the Health 
Public Committee in March 2015 and to the Health and Wellbeing Board in the summer.

The school based Human Papilloma Virus (HPV) has been very successful.

4.8.3 National Childhood Measurement Programme

The National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) is an important element of the 
Government’s work Programme on child obesity, and is operated by Public Health England and 
the Department of Health (DH).

Every year, as part of the NCMP, children in Reception (aged 4-5 years) and Year 6 (aged 10-11 
years) have their height and weight measured during the school year to inform local planning and 
delivery of services for children; and gather population-level surveillance data to allow analysis of 
trends in growth patterns and obesity.

The NCMP also helps to increase public and professional understanding of weight issues in 
children and is a useful vehicle for engaging with children and families about healthy lifestyles 
and weight issues.

For 2012/13 excess weight in 4-5 year olds is 23.5% against a national average of 22.2%.  
Excess weight in 10-11 year olds is 34. % against a national average of 33.3%.  For 13/14 
excess weight in 4-5 year olds is 24.6% against a national average of 22.2% and excess weight 
in 10-11 year olds is 30.4% against a national average of 33.3% The data for 13/14 show a trend 
towards more underweight children in both reception and year 6, more overweight children in 
reception but a positive trend for year 6 children. 

While the local position is similar to the national position there is a clear increase in excess 
weight between these two age groups that requires local action and therefore the initial next 
steps will be undertaken:

 Refresh the local NCMP Evaluation report

 Refresh the Change 4 Life Strategy (potentially separating weight management and physical 
activity to replicate regional programmes).

 Establish Change 4 Life professional group (potentially separating weight management and 
physical activity to replicate regional programmes)

 Evaluate Public Health and partnership financial allocations, commissioned and delivered 
interventions

 Establish Healthy Schools programme to incorporate healthy eating theme

12



4.8.4 School Nursing 

School Nursing plays a significant role in the coordination and delivery of public health 
interventions amongst school age children and young people. Progressing the early intervention 
and prevention (EIP) agenda is a priority for Peterborough and School Nurses are key to this. 
School Nursing Services are an essential component of the Healthy Child Programme (5-19) and 
support school-aged children to achieve the best possible health outcomes. As stated above, the 
Healthy Child Programme is available to all children and aims to ensure that every child gets the 
good start they need to lay the foundations of a healthy life. 

In addition delivering the Healthy Child Programme and National Child Measuring Programme 
the service also:-
 Provides individual health needs assessments and care plans for children with additional 

health or wellbeing needs
 Offers regular opportunities for children, young people and their parents/carers the 

opportunity to discuss health related concerns
 Delivers brief information and advice on a range of health and wellbeing issues to young 

people via school based health clinics (HYPAs) and regular drop-ins
 Supports and advises schools on infection control, outbreak response, medicine management 

and supporting pupils with medical conditions

Delivery of Child Measurement Programme – 98.1% of reception age children screened in Q2 
14/15 and 96.1% of Year 6 children screened. Activity relating to safeguarding children – 6511 
activities in Q1 and Q2 of 14/15.

4.8.5 Emotional Health and Wellbeing

The emotional wellbeing and mental health strategy group has agreed the priorities for promoting 
and improving the emotional wellbeing and mental health for children and young people (C&YP). 
Priorities include; Develop the workforce by having consistent training in universal services, clear 
multiagency pathways to tier 2 and tier 3 services, waiting times for assessment and treatment 
with early support to reduce inappropriate referrals, early intervention and prevention by the 
development of a single point of access in Peterborough with clear pathways and good training 
and guidance on referral pathways, Roll out of Improving Access to Psychological Therapies 
(IAPT) principles, good perinatal support, linking work to the special educational needs and 
disability (SEND) pathway, re-commission and enhance tier 2 services, good transition pathway 
to adult services and ensuring there is a whole system integrated partnership approach that links 
to adult mental health services and suicide prevention pathways.

Waiting Times for CAMH services – this remains an urgent issue to address, work is ongoing with 
commissioners and the provider CPFT to look at what can be done jointly to address this.  Work 
around strengthening universal and tier 2 services will ensure only appropriate referrals go to 
Child & Adolescent Mental Health team (CAMHs).  

4. 9 Children with Disabilities SEND reforms

4.9.1 The SEND reforms support children, young people and families who are affected by special 
educational needs or disabilities, and are designed to ensure everyone can access information 
and services that are the most relevant, meaningful and helpful. Over the past year all partners 
have been working with the local authority to identify their core offer for services and a joined up 
assessment process in developing health, education and social care plans for children that have 
additional needs. This not only encourages an integrated approach, but allows more choice 
around personalisation where children can be given a personal budget for some aspects of their 
care which can be used flexibly to meet their needs. There is also a duty on partners to jointly 
commission services together.

13



4.10    Short Breaks 

4.10.1 Short Breaks’ provide opportunities for children and young people with disabilities to spend time 
away from parents and carers within good quality services. Short Breaks also provide parents 
and carers with breaks from their caring responsibilities, and facilitate quality of life by enabling 
families to access places and activities together. Short breaks offer increased to provide a range 
of flexible community services:-

 Vivacity Sports and Leisure
 After school clubs
 Tickets and passes for leisure centres
 Outreach workers
 Domiciliary care
 Link
 Increase in direct payment packages for short breaks enabling families

Work has started to review all short break services and continually develop flexible services that 
meets the needs of children in Peterborough. 

4.11 Domestic Abuse 

4.11.1  The issue of domestic violence and sexual violence have been highlighted nationally by the 
Government’s Call To End Violence Against Women and Girls. In March 2013, the definition of 
domestic abuse was changed to allow 16 and 17 year olds to be considered as victims. 
At a local level domestic abuse is a priority of the Safer Peterborough Partnership and local 
needs assessment have highlighted the prevalence of sexual violence, particularly experienced 
by young people. During this year, work is underway to build on the existing work relating to 
sexual violence and expand the Domestic Abuse Strategy to enable a fully joined up approach to 
addressing all forms of domestic abuse and sexual violence in the city, across all the partner 
agencies.
 

4.11.2  Domestic abuse and sexual violence support services have traditionally been commissioned and 
delivered separately. However, domestic abuse and sexual violence are not mutually exclusive. 
By integrating the services we can offer a more comprehensive and joined up service which 
places the victim at the centre.

4.11.3  We have commissioned Women’s Aide to provide services that reduce trauma and psychological 
distress experienced by children and young people who have been victims of (or affected by) 
domestic abuse and/or sexual violence. Reduce propensity toward re-victimisation through 
increased resilience, improved self-concept and relationship behaviour. Increase awareness of 
domestic abuse, sexual violence and abusive relationships amongst service users. Improve 
health, psychological wellbeing and general functioning of children and young people affected by 
domestic abuse and/or sexual violence. Support for non-offending parents/guardians to aid their 
child’s recovery from trauma (where appropriate).  Provision of high quality support for victims 
and those directly affected.  Provision of a family based approach where appropriate to ensure 
impact on children, young people and other vulnerable adults is identified and addressed.

4.12 Substance Misuse

4.12.1 The Safer Peterborough Partnership is the body responsible for delivering the National Drug 
strategy at a local level. The three year plan is an overarching strategy looking at the key themes 
from the national drug strategies. Effective commissioning is key to the delivery of drug treatment 
services, to ensure that the services meet local need and is planned, integrated and strategic.
The three strategic themes from the strategy are:

 Reducing Demand This will be achieved by creating an environment where the vast majority 
of people who have never taken drugs continue to remain substance free and making it 
easier for those that do use illicit substances to stop.

14



 Restricting Supply The delivery of robust national and local enforcement, we must make 
Peterborough unattractive destination to those dealing in drugs. 

 Building Recovery in Communities We will ensure those people that want to take the 
necessary steps to tackle their dependency have the service and support in place to ensure 
recovery is achievable.

4.12.2 The current service providers are Aspire and Drink & Drug Sense. The current substance misuse 
treatment services will be retendered throughout 2015/2016 with a view to awarding a new 
integrated substance misuse service to be effective as of 1st April 2016.

4.12.3 Successful treatment completions are above national average for both drugs and alcohol. The 
treatment penetration rate exceeds the national average for opiate/crack users (OCUs), opiates 
and injecting. Simply put, more of the predicted opiate and crack using population in the city are 
engaged in treatment when compared to the national average. The proportion of successful 
completions of opiates and non-opiates is higher than the national average.  The proportion of 
users reducing cannabis and alcohol use is higher than the national average.  The proportion of 
drug treatment clients working at completion is higher than the national average.  No issues with 
waiting times for treatment services.  Successful alcohol completions as a % of all exits is above 
the national average. Alcohol representations rates are below national average.

4.13 Sexual Health

4.13.1 Local authorities became responsible for commissioning comprehensive open-access accessible 
and confidential contraception and sexually transmitted infections (STIs) testing and treatment 
services, for the benefit of all persons of all ages present in the area, with effect from 1st April 
2013, and acquired statutory responsibilities under the Health and Social Care Act 2012.  

4.13.2 The council undertook a retender of contraceptive and sexual health services during 2013. This 
resulted in the integration of hospital based Genito-Urinary Medicine (GUM) services into 
community based contraceptive services to offer ‘a one stop shop’ for all contraceptive and 
sexual health needs. The aim of integration was to improve accessibility and patient experience 
with a view to normalising STI testing and treatment as part of managing one’s sexual and 
reproductive health. 

4.13.3 The service went live on 1st July 2014 and the first complete quarterly monitoring cycle completed 
in November 2014. Initial activity reports of the recently retendered Integrated Contraceptive and 
Sexual Health Service (ICASH) service suggests the council is receiving better value for money 
following the integration of contraceptive and GUM services. When comparing activity and cost 
between Q4 13/14 (the penultimate quarter before integration) and Q2 14/15 (the first 3 months 
of the new integrated service) there appears to be a 27% increase in activity at a 25% reduction 
in cost per attendance.

4.13.4 ICASH has demonstrated the following outcomes in terms of knowledge acquisition and 
motivation to change behaviour following their attendance at ICASH: - 57% of patients reported 
increased knowledge about sexual health and contraception.  60% of patients reported feeling 
more confident or comfortable in discussing contraceptive and sexual health issues, their 
sexuality and visiting similar services in future.  41% of patients now intend to or will think about 
getting a STI test every year/after change of partner.  25% of patients now intend to or will think 
about using contraception to avoid unplanned pregnancies.  25% of patients now intend to or will 
think about using condoms or vaginal dams to avoid STI and HIV transmission.  26% of patients 
now intend to or will think about getting emergency contraception to prevent unintended 
pregnancy.

5. IMPLICATIONS

Not applicable

15



6. CONSULTATION

Not applicable

7. EXPECTED OUTCOMES

That the public health services delivered and commissioned by the Communities Directorate 
continue to develop and improve the health and wellbeing of residents in Peterborough, informed 
and influenced by the feedback and recommendations from the Committee. 

8. NEXT STEPS
 

That any comment or recommendation of the committee are duly noted and recorded.

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None

10. APPENDICES

Detailed paper on the work of the Communities Directorate.

16



1

Public Health Delivery 2014/15 – Background, Evidence and Key Priority

The Peterborough Health and Wellbeing Board has identified cardio vascular disease as its main priority to transform the health status of Peterborough 
residents and to address the significant levels of health inequalities that exist within the City.

Peterborough is the fastest growing City in England and the growth has been mainly younger people and families, and this growth has been much enhanced 
by the new communities from EU countries, specifically those who joined the EU in 2004, collectively known as the EU8.

Despite the comparative youth of the population cardio vascular disease rates remain higher than elsewhere, and evidence shows this to have a real impact 
on quality of life in the City. The Census 2011 profiling covering the topics of general health status, long-term health problems and disability, and provision 
of unpaid care, highlighted some serious areas for concern:

 16.3% of household residents in Peterborough, reported a long-term activity-limiting illness (all extents of limitation).
 51% of people with a long-term illness in Peterborough (15,137) are of working age (16-64);
 45.2% of people reporting a long-term illness described their illness as limiting their day-to-day activities a lot;
 Percentages with a long-term illness were consistently higher in Peterborough across all age groups compared to the Office of National Statistics New and 

Growing Towns cluster and England averages;
 After adjusting for age, the percentage in Peterborough was statistically significantly higher than the Office of National Statistics New and Growing Towns 

cluster and England averages.

Peterborough mortality rates attributable to cardio vascular disease are the 126th worst of 150 local authorities, while Peterborough is ranked as the third 
worst area when considered against 15 demographically similar local authorities. The indicative spend of cardio vascular disease events over 5 year period 
per 200,000 population aged 40+ in areas of deprivation is £75m ( The National Institute for Health and Care Excellence Costs Reports PH25) Deprivation 
across many wards is higher than England average ( Peterborough Health Profile 2014)

This report contains some highlights of the work undertaken by the public health delivery team during 2014/15 supporting the cardio vascular disease 
priority. The service utilises a range of evidence-based approaches to successfully achieve health outcomes throughout Peterborough, this includes: 

- Stop Smoking Service
- Adult and child weight management
- Health Promotion Campaigns and Events
- NHS Health Checks
- Accredited Health Improvement Training
- Capacity building - youth, community and workplace health champions 

17



2

Programme Targets/Key Message Outcomes to Date (2014/15)
Stop Smoking Service Latest available prevalence 20.8% (England is 

18.4%) Trajectory is to achieve 1434- four week 
validated quitters

End of Nov 2014 – 73%  equating to 653 quitters 
(note this reflects data for 12 week intervention 
period – Dec data not complete)

 Local Incentivisation Scheme (LIS) 12 
GP practices = 174 quits (27% of total)

 GP practices with Live Healthy Advisors 
= 218 quits (33% of total)

 21 Pharmacies on LIS = 97 quits (15% of 
total)

 One to One community clinics Live 
Healthy Advisors = 141 quits (22%) of 
total

 Referrals from hospital 352 of these 25 
quit

Referrals from Stoptober Campaign 247 of 
which 27 quit

Smoking in Pregnancy Prevalence is 18% at time of delivery 77% of trajectory (end of Nov)
Current referral rate at time of booking is 63%

Smoking and Young People (Operation Smoke 
Storm)

Implement and deliver key education 
programme raising awareness of the risks of 
smoking across school and youth settings

1423 young people have completed training 
across 12 secondary schools and 2 Pupil Referral 
Unit’s
Resulting in 118 referrals to Stop Smoking 
Service

Hospital Interface Project 77 hospital staff have completed online 
training

QTR 1 – 100 referrals made to Peterborough  
Stop Smoking Service
QTR 2 – 144 referrals made to Peterborough  
Stop Smoking Service

Key Facts: Smoking
More than one in five adults smoke in Peterborough. This rate (20.8%) is significantly higher than the regional (17.5%) and national 
(18.4%) averages. Smoking prevalence among Peterborough mothers at time of delivery (18%) is higher than the regional (12.4%) 
and national (12.7%) averages. It is also the highest in the region. Nationally an estimated 12.71% of 15 year olds are regular or 
occasional smokers

18



3

Programme Referral routes/key message Outcomes to date 2014/15
Let’s Get Moving (Adults) Health Professionals, self-referrals, NHS Health 

Check
 19 programmes delivered 
 144 referred by health professionals
 115 self-referred
 214 clients with health conditions
 62% of clients completed 70% of 

programme (attended 17 out of 20 
sessions)

 Data for Jan programmes will be available 
in March 2015

Morelife (Children and Young People) Health Professionals, National Child Weight 
Management programme, Social Services, self-
referrals

Total number of referrals received = 149
 79 referred by health professionals
 70 self-referrals
 71 completed 10 week programme
 38 reduction of BMI at 10 week 

measurements
 Data for January programmes will be 

available in March 2015
Change4Life – 10 minute shake up Families/children – promoting importance of 

physical activity & encouraging sign up to free 
resources/information through C4L

916 families signed up

Local Event- Dogsthorpe Fire Station – Road Safety 
Week

Primary age school children – promoting key 
messages through structured teaching sessions– 
Healthy Eating, physical activity & risk of smoking

Engaged with 1031 children over a week

Stoptober - a nationwide campaign with 
supported high profile media coverage 

Population approach – adults/young people - 
to challenge people who smoke to quit during 
the month of October

247 referrals to stop smoking services

Key Facts: Child and Adult Weight Management 

The latest results of the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP), which tracks the height and weight of children in reception and year 
six, showed for 2013/14 access weight in 4-5 year olds is 24.6% in Peterborough against a national average of 22.2%. Access weight in 10-11 
year olds is 30.4% against a national average of 33.3%, more overweight children in reception but a positive trend for year 6 children. The 
number of adults with a body mass index (BMI) classified as overweight (including obese), calculated from the adjusted height and weight 
variables is 65.5% in Peterborough against a national average of 63.8%.

19



4

Local Event – Adults with Learning Disabilities Adults- learning disability/special needs – Healthy 
lifestyle advice and interactive games

400 individuals

National Obesity Week Children/Adults- promoting healthy eating and 
importance of physical activity

880 primary school children over a period of 6 
weeks (June-July)

Food and Farming Event – local event All primary schools in Peterborough – promoting the 
importance of healthy eating & growing your own 
food

5,500 children took part in interactive healthy eating 
activities

Programme Targets/key message Outcomes to Date 2014/15
NHS Health Checks 25 GP practices Engaged

The 2014/15 programme has now reached the 

Quarter 3 stage, the programme has delivered 

9181 Health check offers and 4662 completed 

checks.  This represent 77% of the target 

(6061) with an uptake of 51%.

64 patients assessed with a cardio vascular 

disease risk of more than 20% (10 year risk of 

developing a chronic disease.

33 Hypertensive patients identified (High Blood 

Pressure)

9 Diabetics diagnosed 

1544 patients received lifestyle advice 

information provided

Key Facts: NHS Health Checks

The Free NHS Health Check programme is a public health programme in England for eligible people aged 40-74.  It is a risk assessment and 
management programme to prevent or delay the onset of major non-communicable disease such as heart disease, stroke, diabetes, kidney 
disease, certain cancers and respiratory disease.

20



5

Public health for children and young people aims to promote their health, prevent disease, develop their resilience and foster 

Programme Key Targets/message Outcomes to date 

Making Every Contact Count - Through the 

delivery of accredited Royal Society of Public 

Health (RSPH) Level 2 Award in Health 

Improvement Very Brief Intervention 

smoking training

Training frontline staff in the basic skills of health 

promotion and disease prevention

 Initial pilot rolled out to frontline 

housing staff and managers, with 

detailed plan to follow based on 

evaluation report in June/July

Volunteer Youth Health Champions Provide help and support to their peers to become 

healthy, active and enjoy a more positive frame of 

mind by adapting healthier lifestyles through the 

delivery of health promotion campaigns and 

providing safe signposting to lifestyle services

 40 YP recruited as volunteer health 
champions

 Delivered 13 campaigns generating 118 
referrals to stop smoking services

 317 YP have completed accredited training 
in health improvement

 Following involvement in project 28 YP 
have gone onto part-time/permanent 
employment

 7 have requested references for 

university applications

Workplace Health Programme We are working in collaboration with businesses and 
organisations across the city to help them support 
their workforces to adopt healthier lifestyles. Our 
programme is based on the Workplace Health 
Champion model, whereby we train and support 
individuals from within the workforce to deliver 
healthy lifestyle messages, events and campaigns to 
their colleagues. 

 650 employees engaged in a heart health 
campaign at Perkins 

 6 workplace health champions completed 
accredited Royal Society of Public 
Health level 2

 Workplace Health Champions supported a 
3 day “stand down” event delivering 
healthy lifestyle messages to 3000 
employees at the East of England 

Key Facts: Capacity Building & Delivery of Accredited Health Improvement

The National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) published public health guidance on promoting health related behaviour change 
(PH006;2007). Based on this a range of interventions are being developed and delivered to support the idea of making every contact count. This 
will involve skilling up the workforce to do basic health improvement work, supporting health enhancing behaviour change. It is important to 
acknowledge that assets within communities, such as skills and knowledge, social networks, local groups and community organisations are 
building blocks for good health

21



6

showground

Public Health Commissioning 

This report contains highlights of the work of the Public Health commissioning team, as well as identifying the priorities, commissioned 
services and outcomes delivered over the last year including: 

 Substance Misuse 
 Domestic Abuse
 Sexual Health 
 Healthy Child Programme 

Substance Misuse Services

The commissioning team is currently working to fully integrate the existing drug and alcohol treatment services with the intention of 
commissioning a service which:

 Bases provision around people rather pre-existing services
 Improves provision and pathways
 Increases efficiency and therefore value for money
 Streamlines contracting arrangements thereby reducing 58 contracts into 1

The commissioning of this service is very much a priority, however ensuring that the existing services continue to perform well and meet 
the agreed key performance indicators is key to ensuring delivery of the Safer Peterborough Partnership’s three key strategic themes: 

 Reducing Demand This will be achieved by creating an environment where the vast majority of people who have never taken 
drugs continue to remain substance free and making it easier for those that do use illicit substances to stop.

 Restricting Supply The delivery of robust national and local enforcement, we must make Peterborough unattractive 
destination to those dealing in drugs. 

 Building Recovery in Communities We will ensure those people that want to take the necessary steps to tackle their 
dependency have the service and support in place to ensure recovery is achievable.

22



7

The following details the activity over the last year

Work Programme Number of Organisations Involved Outcomes to date

Contract delivery Adult drug treatment service – Crime Reduction 
Initiative (CRI, Aspire)
Adult alcohol treatment service – Drinksense
Young people’s substance misuse service – 
Drinksense 
Pharmacy based needle exchange scheme (32 
pharmacies)
Pharmacy based supervised consumption (16 
pharmacies)
Inpatient detoxification– Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Foundation Trust
Framework agreement for inpatient residential 
rehabilitation 

Successful treatment completions above national 
average for both drugs and alcohol.

The treatment penetration rate exceeds the national 
average for opiate/crack users (OCUs), opiates and 
injecting. Simply put, more of the predicted opiate and 
crack using population in the city are engaged in 
treatment when compared to the national average.

The proportion of successful completions of opiates 
and non-opiates is higher than the national average

Reducing crime is one of the most important benefits of 
drug treatment. Recent research has shown that the 
total number of crimes committed by users almost 
halved following the start of treatment, proving that 
investment in these service is providing a real benefit to 
communities

The proportion of users reducing cannabis and alcohol 
use is higher than the national average

The proportion of drug treatment clients working at 
completion is higher than the national average

No issues with waiting times for treatment services

Successful alcohol completions as a % of all exits is 
above the national average
Alcohol representations rates are below national 

23



8

average

Sexual Health

The existing integrated contraceptive and sexual health service is delivered by Cambridgeshire Community Services and is working 
towards:-

 Improving its HIV prevention  activity to ensure it reaches nationally and locally identified high risk groups
 Improve its early intervention/prevention to ensure it is targeting high risk groups and hard to engage clients
 Increase proportion of 15-24 population screened for chlamydia from 22.7 to above 28.0 (to mirror highest performing in region) 

 Delivery of truly integrated service contraceptive and sexual health service as measured by proportion of staff dual trained (L1 all, 
L2 75%, L3 50%) and proportion of clinics delivered as integrated contraception and sexual health’ clinics by 30th June 2015

 Establish a multi-agency Sexual Health Network and convene 2 meetings for Peterborough by 30th June 2015

 The priorities for the Peterborough are to: 
 Reduce rate of late diagnosed HIV
 Increase proportion of 15-24s screened for Chlamydia
 Reduce under 18 conception rate

24



9

The following details the activity over the last year

Work Programme Number of Organisations Involved Outcomes to date

Contract delivery Integrated Contraceptive and Sexual Health Service 
(ICASH) – Cambridgeshire Community Services 
13 GP surgeries

Initial activity reports of the recently retendered 
Integrated Contraceptive and Sexual Health Service 
suggests the council is receiving better value for 
money following the integration of contraceptive and 
Genito-urinary Medicine services. When comparing 
activity and cost between Q4 13/14 (the penultimate 
quarter before integration) and Q2 14/15 (the first 3 
months of the new integrated service) there appears 
to be a 27% increase in activity at a 25% reduction in 
cost per attendance.

Integrated Contraceptive and Sexual Health Service 
has demonstrated the following outcomes in terms of 
knowledge acquisition and motivation to change 
behaviour following their attendance at Integrated 
Contraceptive and Sexual Health Service:-

57% of patients reported increased knowledge about 
sexual health and contraception 

60% of patients reported feeling more confident or 
comfortable in discussing contraceptive and sexual 
health issues, their sexuality and visiting similar 
services in future

41% of patients now intend to or will think about 
getting a sexually transmitted infection test every 
year/after change of partner 

25% of patients now intend to or will think about 
using contraception to avoid unplanned pregnancies 

25



10

25% of patients now intend to or will think about 
using condoms or vaginal dams to avoid sexually 
transmitted infection and HIV transmission

26% of patients now intend to or will think about 
getting emergency contraception to prevent 
unintended pregnancy.

Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 

In 2014 the Public Health commissioning team has commissioned a single, integrated service to support victims of domestic abuse and 
sexual violence. The service offers both adult and child orientated support services for children and adults affected by domestic abuse 
and/or sexual violence. 
 
The rationale behind integrating domestic abuse and sexual violence support services in part comes from the evidence outlined in the 
Office of the Children’s Commissioner’s Inquiry, including the complex inter-dynamics of domestic abuse and sexual violence and the 
way in which young people can be both victims and perpetrators of sexual exploitation. 
 
These issues were investigated at a local level through a needs assessment. The adult and children/young people services were then 
structured so that young people aged 16-18 could attend either, depending on their needs. 
 

The Youth Offending Service has also developed a programme of interventions to work with young perpetrators of domestic and 
relationship abuse. The effectiveness of these interventions is monitored through the Safer Peterborough Partnership’s performance 
framework on a bi-monthly basis, and in more depth at the Domestic Abuse Strategic Board. The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
links to this partnership but outcomes are monitored by the Safer Peterborough Partnership, which in turn is accountable to the Health 
and Wellbeing Board.

The priority for the service is to continue to develop a sustainable approach to addressing domestic abuse and sexual violence within 
Peterborough by working with the existing provider by: 

26



11

 Preventing abuse from occurring by raising awareness, delivering education and challenging attitudes amongst both young 
people and adults 

 Intervening early to prevent escalation and reduce risk 
 Providing support for victims to enable them to recover and move on from abuse 
 Protecting children from harm who live within an environment where there is domestic abuse 
 Bringing perpetrators to justice and provide interventions to change their behaviour and prevent future victims 
 Working in partnership to make best use of resources and knowledge 
 Providing robust governance and scrutiny of all work to address domestic abuse in the city 

The following details the activity over the last year

Work Programme Number of Organisations Involved Outcomes to date

Contract Delivery Peterborough Women’s Aid Reduced trauma and psychological distress experienced 
by children and young people who have been victims of 
(or affected by) domestic abuse and/or sexual violence.
Reduced propensity toward re-victimisation through 
increased resilience, improved self- concept and 
relationship behaviour. 
Increased awareness of domestic abuse, sexual violence 
and abusive relationships amongst service users.
Improved health, psychological wellbeing and general 
functioning of children and young people affected by 
domestic abuse and/or sexual violence.
Support for non-offending parents/guardians to aid their 
child’s recovery from trauma (where appropriate).
To be child and young person focused.
Increased safety of victims.
Reduced future risk to victims.
Improved health and wellbeing of victims.
Provision of high quality support for victims and those 
directly affected.

27



12

Reduced physical and psychological impact of 
abuse/violence on victims.
Provision of a family based approach where appropriate 
to ensure impact on children, young people and other 
vulnerable adults is identified and addressed.
Increased confidence to access services and support.



Healthy Child Programme

In Peterborough, we want children to be born healthy and receive the best start in life, in those early years. In line with the Healthy Child 
Programme, the early years is a priority area for Peterborough and in particular outcomes that relate to improved communication, 
positive attachments and social relationships, healthy lifestyles and being ready to learn and achieve. This will be achieved by auctioning 
the following priorities: 

 Improve intervention and prevention particularly for vulnerable children in the early years and their families
 Improve access to and co-ordination of health and well – being initiatives for young children and families
 To better support parents of young children to become resilient, confident and independent
 Develop high quality, flexible services to provide effective learning and childcare for all children and families to ensure children 

are school ready

The following details the activity over the last year

Work Programme Number of Organisations Involved Outcomes to date

Ensure that children are 
accessing high quality 
child care settings and 
are supported to arrive 
in school ready to learn 
and socialise

Pre-school Children’s settings
 Children’s Centre’s
 Child minders
 Day Nurseries

Recent Ofsted statistical data released on 27 
November 2014 shows that at their most recent 
inspection up to 31 August 2014, 82% of all 
provision was graded good or above. This places 
Peterborough 2% above the national average and 
fourth out of eleven statistical neighbours. 
Advice, support and training is focused to best 
support providers in ensuring they are effectively 
meeting children’s needs.

28



13

Child-Minders As of 31st August, 2012 63% of child-minders were 
graded good or above, which placed us tenth out 
of the eleven statistical neighbours. As of 31 
August 2014, this figure has increased to 79% 
graded good or above which now places 
Peterborough fifth out of eleven of the statistical 
neighbours and is 1% above the national figure.

Childcare on non-
domestic settings (pre-
schools and day 
nurseries)

As of 31st August, 2012 78% of providers were 
graded good or above. The recent data shows that 
this figure is now 84%, an increase of 6%.

Proportion of mothers 
who are continuing to 
breastfeed at 6-8 weeks

Midwives, Health Visitors, Family Nurse partnership. 
Children-centres

The proportion of mothers continuing to 
breastfeed at 6-8 weeks since April 2014 have 
been above target (95%) except for September 
when there was a slight dip (44.9%) This puts us in 
a good position to get reaccreditation for baby 
friendly status from UNICEF in March 2015.

New Birth Checks 
Completed

Health Visitors The new birth visit is carried out by the health 
visitor between 10-14 days after birth, this is an 
opportunity for the health visitor to carry out a 
comprehensive assessment of the mother and 
baby’s needs, identify any issues and 
vulnerabilities and assess the kind of support that 
is needed

2.5 year checks 
completed

Health Visitors/ Children’s centres The 2.5 year check is an important check for 
children to assess their development and identify 
any issues. Height, weight, play and social 
interaction are part of this along with a 
comprehensive developmental review. 2.5 year 

29



14

checks are at 91.9% against a target of 75%. This 
demonstrates good joint working to achieve this 
target with partners.

Ensure that any early 
indications of additional 
needs among children 
are identified in a 
timely way

Schools/school Nursing service On starting school, all children are offered the 
school entry health check which includes height 
and weight; hearing and vision testing; handover 
from health visitor of any children they are still 
working with. Developmental assessments at age 
4-5 are completed by the school nursing service. 
91.4% of children were seen against a target of 
90%

Early Support Pathway Health/Children’s centre’s/All pre-school 
settings/Education

Early Support is an approach which aims to 
improve the delivery of services for Children, who 
are disabled or who have complex additional 
needs, and their families.
It promotes:
Services working together, joint planning and 
shared decision making; using the Common 
Assessment Framework and Family Support Plan 
as tools for the single holistic assessment and 
planning process to identify need and access, plan, 
coordinate and review priorities, services and 
support.

Key working via the lead professional role which 
provides a single point of contact for families and 
professionals.
The provision of accurate up to date information in 
a format that is relevant to the family.

An Early support co-ordinator has now been 
appointed and workshop arranged with all 

30



15

partners to develop this with a view of this starting 
on 1st April 2015

Work Programme Number of Organisations Involved Outcomes to date

Perinatal Mental Health Midwives/GP’s/Health Visitors The perinatal Mental Health pathway has been 
strengthened with an increase in Community 
Psychiatric Nurse support and Improving Access to 
Psychological Therapies. The pathway is currently 
being developed and will be operation from 1st 
march this will enable a named contact for GP’s 
and increased training and support for all.

Transfer of 
commissioning 
responsibilities for 
Health Visitor and 
Family Nurse 
Partnership from NHS 
England to PCC

PCC Commissioners/NHS England PCC is working closely with NHS England on the 
transfer of health visitors and the Family Nurse 
Partnership programme (FNP) to ensure a smooth 
transfer of the commissioning of these service to 
the PCC in September 2015. A Service specification 
and KPI’s are being agreed that reflect the needs 
of Peterborough children and families.

 

31



T
his page is intentionally left blank

32



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 6

10 MARCH 2015 Public Report

Report of the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care                                  

Contact Officer(s) – Jana Burton, Executive Director Adult Social Care, Health & 
Wellbeing
Contact Details - 01733 452407

ADULT SOCIAL CARE – ONE YEAR ON

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This report provides an overview of the work of the Adult Social Care department 
three years post transfer back from the NHS, and covers key performance, 
transformation plans, major commissioning activity and financial management.  

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Scrutiny Commission is asked to note and comment upon the progress made 
over the last twelve months and priorities and challenges facing the department in 
the coming year.

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

3.1 There are a number of local and National Indicators that relate to Adult Social Care.  
These are referred to within the body of this report and are the subject of a separate 
performance report being presented to Health Scrutiny Commission this month.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Over the last twelve months significant work has taken place to prepare for the 
implementation of the Care Act from April 2015 including a new target operating 
model for care service delivery and developing alternative forms of commissioning 
to support this work.

Closer partnership working has taken place with health and other key partners as 
part of our Better Care Fund submission and also wider partnership working with 
health colleagues and Cambridgeshire County Council to address the wider 
challenges within the health economy.

All of this has been addressed within the context of increasing demographic 
pressures and financial challenges faced by the Council.

The department has been continuing its progress within the agreed planned and 
phased programmed change from 2013-2016 which also allows for business as 
usual. This can be summarised as follows: 

1) To integrate Adult Social Care back within the council and to build and re-
establish sound relationships with health and other partner agencies

33



2) To address the shortfall in performance, commissioning plans and strategies 
and the need to modernise services in line with personalisation

3) To transform processes for assessment and care management and 
commissioned service to support the new approach and position Adult 
Social Care at the forefront of good practice

4) To ensure that the approach anticipates the new legislative changes 
estimated in the Care Bill and Better Care Fund

5) To reduce unnecessary bureaucracy and improve quality and outcomes for 
those we support

6) To meet our statutory responsibilities within agreed resources and to deliver 
savings and efficiencies as required

5. KEY ACHIEVEMENTS & PROGRESS

5.1

5.2

5.3

Public Health Responsibilities

The last twelve months have provided a clearer focus with agreed priorities for 
Public Health namely: Children and Cardiovascular Disease. Good work has taken 
place on health protection the results of which are due for publication at the end of 
the month, together with the Director of Public Health Annual Report.

Consultation on Adults under 65

On December 15th 2014 a paper was presented at Cabinet to agree:

1. To an open tender for the delivery of day opportunities for under 65s which 
are currently provided by the council

2. To provide a service for people with complex needs at Kingfisher Day 
Centre and have a micro enterprise situated within it

3. Provision of community based satellite centres to provide independent living 
skills, employment and social opportunities

4. For the 2015/16 budget to be amended to reflect the savings arising from 
the redesigned services

5. A further period of consultation on the new proposed model of delivery  

Cabinet resolved to agree all of the above as the new model would better support 
people to reach their full potential in life and develop skills which would help them to 
gain employment, and/or skills which would support them to live independently. It 
also agreed to support those people with complex needs with a more targeted 
approach to ensure that their needs are met. 

Following approval consultation events started on 12 January 2015 and ran for four 
weeks until 6 February 2015. Feedback on the surveys, events, letters and 
telephone calls have been collated and will be presented to Cabinet on 23rd March 
2015 following which they will be published on the Council website.

Better Care Fund

In line with expectations the initial Better Care Fund submission from PCC and 
health partners was ‘approved with conditions’. This was as a result of being seen 
as one of ’11 nationally challenged health economies’ and also as the contract for 
community health services (a key partner for delivery of many of the outcomes) had 
not yet been awarded. 

34



5.4

5.5

Following this, key partners worked hard together during November and December 
to agree the vision, the number of schemes and benefits realisation. This included 
working with the new provider Uniting Care Partnership. The plan was resubmitted 
on the 9th January and has now been approved for implementation  

Care Act

The final guidance around the April 2015 provisions enacted by the Care Act 2014 
was published in October 2014.   Since then there has been a focus on ensuring 
our preparations align to both the Better Care Fund joint planning and the wider 
ASC Transformation and Customer Experience Programmes.  

Mapping of all key deliverables against the overall work plan for the Council has 
been undertaken and additional programme resources identified to ensure 
compliance, this includes identification of the technology we will need to support us 
to deliver the requirements efficiently over time.

The NHS will be a key partner in the context of the Act which requires greater 
integration between adult social care and the NHS.
Key mile stones will be:

 Final sign off of the Better Care Fund plan, submitted to NHS England on 9th 
January 2015 and expected to be signed off in February 2015.

 The implementation of the Information and Advice service for Adult Social 
Care, in place from 19th January 2015 and expected to be fully operational 
from 2nd February 2015.

 The new Council website, supporting easier searches and frequently asked 
questions, alongside online referral and assessment routes, expected by 
April 2015.

 Amendments to key forms and processes for assessment and support 
planning and the national eligibility criteria to be in place by April 2015.

 Establishment of a new offer for Carers by April 2015.

We are working closely with the Prison on delivery of the new responsibilities for 
prisoners with care needs.  

We are supporting the Safeguarding Adults Board with the delivery of the new 
statutory responsibilities in relation to safeguarding enquires, safeguarding adult’s 
reviews and quality of care provision.   Plans to establish a Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub across Peterborough and Cambridgeshire are at an advanced 
stage with implementation expected early in 2015/16.

The Guidance relating to the changes to be introduced from April 2016, relating to 
self- funders and Care Accounts and Care Caps, is due to be published by 
Department of Health in February 2015.

Budget Savings

The budget for Adult Social Care Health & Wellbeing is £41.0m with a further £0.5m 
of capacity fund allocated to support transformation projects. The latest estimate is 
to underspend by £0.2m (0.5% of budget). The 14/15 budget was underpinned by a 
significant savings programme (£3.3m – 7.5% of budget), aimed at transforming 

35



5.6

5.7

5.8

service to deliver modern personalised social care and generating better value from 
contracts. The programme is currently on track to deliver the level of savings 
targeted and will form a strong basis for achieving the significant savings proposed 
for 15/16 (£6.6m)

Mental Health Concordat

The Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat is a national agreement between services 
and agencies involved in the care and support of people in crisis. It sets out how 
organisations will work together better to make sure that people get the help they 
need when they are having a mental health crisis. Mind, the mental health charity, 
has been tasked with helping local areas come together to develop their local Crisis 
Care Declarations.

For the Crisis Care Concordat to become a reality, it needs to be adopted at a local 
level. Local mental health trusts, acute trusts, ambulance trusts, police forces, local 
authorities, social services, housing associations, third sector providers and other 
organisations need to come together to make their own joint Declarations and 
implement an Action Plan for the areas they serve. 

The Mental Health Concordat was signed by Jana Burton on 3rd November 2014 on 
behalf of Peterborough City Council 

Dementia Resource Centre 

In March 2014 approval was given to award a contract for the refurbishment of 441 
Lincoln Road creating a new Dementia Resource Centre. 

The Lincoln Road Centre was transformed into a state of the art facility for people 
with dementia following the latest thinking in “dementia friendly design” which 
included new accessible toilets, a wet room, one to one and group rooms, a café, a 
community garden and significant improvements to the car park including 
introducing additional disabled parking bays.

On Friday 5 September 2014 the Dementia Resource Centre marked its completion 
with an official launch event.  Over 80 people attended. The Centre was officially 
opened by myself and Josette Simon, Actress and Patron of Alzheimer’s Society. 

The Centre is the first in the region to combine the NHS Memory Clinic’s diagnosis 
team with ongoing help and support under one roof.  The model has received local, 
regional and national recognition.

The development could not have been achieved could not have been possible 
without the input from people with dementia and their carers and members of the 
Peterborough Dementia Action Alliance. We are also very appreciative of the work 
of the Carers Trust, Salvation Army, CCG, Home Instead, Healthwatch, 
Comforcare, Age UK and Sue Ryder for their support in developing the centre and 
helping Peterborough work to become dementia friendly. 

CMDN’s

A total of 6 CMDNs for Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing were submitted 
during the period March 2014 to March 2015

36



5.9

- Turning Point Extension of Contract – for the provision of the Community 
Based Supported Living Service

- Respite Policy – a new policy designed to ensure greater clarity and 
consistency across service user groups

- Residential Placements
- Mental Health Concordat – as referenced above
- Integrated Community Equipment Service Contract Award
- Dementia Resource Centre – as referenced above

Future Priorities: The priorities for 15/16 will include

- Implementation of Better Care Fund and assessment of financial 
implications

- Financial modelling of the impact of the Care Act and preparation for 
implementation of responsibilities around ‘the Care Cap’ from 2016

- Transfer of budgets to other directorates as part of the Senior Management 
Restructure

- Ensuring the work of Adult Social Care care service delivery and 
commissioning is embedded in the new Directorate for People and 
Communities

6.0 IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Adult Social Care and Public Health is relevant across all wards of the city

7.0 CONSULTATION

7.1 Not applicable

8.0 NEXT STEPS

8.1 There are no immediate next steps to be considered arising from this report

9.0 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985

9.1 None

10.0 APPENDICES

10.1 None.

37



This page is intentionally left blank

38



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 7

10 MARCH 2015 Public Report

Report of the Executive Director of Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing                                     

Contact Officer(s) – Tina Hornsby – Assistant Director Quality, Information and Performance
Contact Details – 01733 452427, tina.hornsby@peterborough.gov.uk

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND PUBLIC HEALTH – 2014/15 PERFORMANCE REPORT

1. PURPOSE

1.1

1.2

The report provides a summary of performance delivery for the Adult Social Care, Health and 
Wellbeing Directorate.  It provides an overview of progress against key projects to achieve the 
outcomes identified within the Care Act 2014 and performance information to illustrate the 
current position as at the end of December 2014 (Quarter 3).

Scrutiny commission previously received a performance report in March 2014, with a 
performance overview up to and including December 2013.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Scrutiny Commission is asked to review and comment upon the outcome and performance 
information within the report.

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

3.1 The Adult Social Care and Public Health outcomes have strong links to the health and 
wellbeing aspects of the community strategy.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1

4.2

4.3

The key focus for Adult Social Care in the last 12 months has been the large scale 
transformation of services to meet the requirements of the Care Act 2014.  The department has 
also been working closely with Health colleagues to agree a model of delivery that supports 
integration and is aligned to the Peterborough Better Care Fund, which was approved by NHS 
England in February 2015. 

The Care Act 2014 requirements for Local Authorities can be split into for key outcome areas, 
which also align to the Adult Social Care Outcome Framework domains which are also reported 
to the Scrutiny Commission annually via the Local Account.   The four areas are as follows.

 Promoting wellbeing through universal services, information, advice and guidance.
 Enabling people to live fulfilled lives
 Personalisation and long term support
 Safeguarding against harm to wellbeing.

Appendix one provides a one page performance summary for each outcome area. 

The Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Department also holds responsibility for the 
following Public Health functions.

 Health Improvement
 Health Protection
 Healthcare public health
 Health Intelligence

39



Appendix two provides a one page performance summary for each function.

5. KEY ISSUES

ADULT SOCIAL CARE
The Department has some challenging programmes to deliver in the current financial year and 
in the main these are achieving the expected progress.    Over the course of quarter 3 work has 
been undertaken with the newly appointed health integrator (Uniting Care) and the Clinical 
Commissioning Group to develop a model for system wide integrated working via the Better 
Care Fund.  The plan has been approved and alongside the Care act will form the foundation to 
programmes for 2015-16.   

5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2.

5.1.3

5.1.4

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

Promoting Wellbeing through Universal Services, Information and Advice and Guidance
    
The aim is to provide information, advice and guidance about universal services, groups and 
activities available locally which enable people to remain as active and healthy as possible. The 
intention is to reduce reliance upon statutory support. Increasing use of preventative services 
and wider use of assistive technology are key measure of success.

The new target operating model for Adult Social Care designed to support implementation of 
the Care Act went live on 2nd February 2015. We have also invested in information, training and 
purchase of assistive technology equipment to bring about rapid change as this has been an 
area of historical under investment. Both these measures and improved recording and metrics 
should see significant improvement for the new financial year.

Locally as well as nationally, there has been an increase in emergency admissions to hospital 
for older people. In Peterborough demographic increases within an aging population and health 
inequalities are resulting in people living longer with more than one long term condition 
compounding the position. The Better Care Fund with enhanced working across health and 
social care sets a target for the Council to reduce injury through falls and emergency 
admissions to hospital in 2015/16 and 2016/17. This will require effective joint working across 
the system as Better Care Fund plans are implemented to bring about the required reductions. 

The Dementia Resource Centre which opened last autumn is receiving very positive feedback 
from professionals, carers and families.

Enabling people to live fulfilled lives and building confidence to do things safely

When people have an episode in their lives that leads to the need for support, the best outcome 
is recovery and gaining and/or regaining skills and confidence to be as independent as 
possible. In line with the Care Act and Better Care Fund our approach is to offer a default 
period of reablement or rehabilitation. Building on our success to date the Better Care Fund 
enhances opportunities and sets targets for reducing system wide delays in transferring people 
from hospital to benefit from rehabilitation and reablement. Our aim is to increase numbers 
accessing and successful outcomes for people, who will require lower levels or no further 
support as a result of this service. 

A key way to enable recovery is to ensure carers are provided with early and adequate support.  
The Care Act significantly enhances the offer for carers.  The number of carers assessed and 
supported in Peterborough is lower than the national average and this is thus a key focus for us 
in 2015/16.  The improved levels of satisfaction from carers in the Autumn 2014 survey 
suggests we are offering a better level of service than previously.

We have undertaken a significant amount of work on this during 2014/15, with projects 
including transforming day opportunities and creation of new 0-25 years’ service, together with 
enablement and therapy services teams.  The focus going forward will be the implementation of 
seven day working, and the expansion of reablement and rehabilitation models and services. 

40



5.2.4

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2 

5.3.3

5..4

5.4.1

5.4.2

5.4.3

5.4.4

It should be noticed that the system has experienced significant challenges in discharges from 
hospital, only one delay from Peterborough City Hospital has been for a social care reason.

Personalisation of long term support 

Where people have long term care and support needs it is the responsibility of the Council to 
ensure availability of good quality appropriate support services.  The Care Act introduces a 
requirement for Council’s to produce Market Position Statements setting out where there are 
service gaps that we wish to commission against.  We are currently finalising our first Market 
Position Statement on residential care which will be published during this quarter.  We have 
prioritised this to ensure adequate good quality provision to meet the needs of a growing older 
population with complex needs.  The Care Act continues previous models of Direct Payments 
and we continue to see increasing take up.  For those with long term support needs and 
deterioration of conditions it is important that reviews happen regularly.  We now monitor those 
receiving a review in 10 months rather than annually, where our performance is at 94%.  

The Care Act introduces a national eligibility criteria based on a three part assessment.
 The adult’s needs relate to a physical or mental impairment or illness
 As a result of those needs, the adult is unable to achieve two or more specified 

outcomes
 As a consequence, there is likely to be a significant impact on their wellbeing

The Care Act also introduces a wider use of advocacy in supporting assessments where there 
is not suitable person to support the person.  We are currently preparing to retrain all our front 
line workers on person centred assessment using the new national eligibility criteria and will be 
going out to tender for increased advocacy support services during the first quarter of 2015/16.

Safeguarding against harm to wellbeing 

The Care Act for the first time introduces statutory requirements around adult safeguarding.  It 
also expands the definition to include domestic violence and modern slavery.  The 
Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) appointed a new independent chair in 2014-15 and are 
working towards compliance with the Act.  In particular we are well underway in plans to 
implement a Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) across Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough.  This will help ensure proportionate steps are taken at an early point by the right 
agency to safeguard when there is a suspicion that someone is at risk of or a victim of abuse.  
Although we continue to monitor timelines the SAB will identify new standards and outcome 
measures to align to the new model of delivery.  

Peterborough has been a pilot site for Making Safeguarding Personal, which reflects the new 
model of person centred safeguarding introduced nationally from April 2015 by the Care Act.  
As a pilot site we have begun to identify the outcomes specified by the adults involved and to 
measure whether they were delivered.  Between April – December 2014 33% of adults 
supported by the safeguarding process felt that their outcomes had been met.  This will form a 
baseline for us to compare progress in 2015-16. 

During 2014-15 we have continued to work to improve quality within care homes, undertaking 
three large scale investigations and overseeing providers action plans to ensure quality 
improvement was delivered where it was identified.  In partnership with the Clinical 
Commissioning Group we have run a pilot of a nurse educator role within care homes, targeting 
homes with high rates of emergency admissions to hospital.  Although we are only three 
months into the pilot we have seen a reduction in admissions from homes supported by this 
role.  We are now considering enhancing this model by introducing a multi-agency quality 
improvement team, as set out within our Better Care Fund plan.

A case law judgment on the application of the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards regulations 
delivered in March 2014, has led to a surge in applications nationally.   For Peterborough this 
has meant an increase from 24 applications in 2014-15 to 327 in the first three quarters of 
2015-16.  We have secured additional resources to deliver against this new responsibility. 

41



5.5

5.6

5.7 

5.8

Recruitment to a permanent team is underway to build capacity at a time when all authorities 
have been competing for a limited resource.

PUBLIC HEALTH 

Health Improvement.
Improving the overall population health and tackling health inequalities has proved a long term 
challenge for Peterborough.  The Health and Wellbeing Board have established Cardiovascular 
disease and children as the local priorities. The Director for Public Health annual report will be 
available at the end of March and will report on priorities and progress to date.

Our long term success will be measured by improved performance across the 48 health 
improvement indicators identified within the Public Health Outcomes Framework (PHOF). 

Health Protection
Health Protection has focused on actions to protect the population’s health from major 
incidents, communicable diseases, environmental and other threats, whilst tackling health 
inequalities.  Task and Finish groups have been established to promote the uptake of childhood 
immunisations, and cervical and bowel cancer screening.  We have been working with Public 
Health England following publication of their new TB strategy.  Sexual health is another priority 
area with specific focus on under 178 conceptions, and late diagnosis of HIV infection.  Uptake 
and coverage of chlamydia screening in 15-24 year olds is good with the second highest 
detection rate in East of England. The Health Protection annual report will be available by the 
end of March.

Healthcare public health
The focus has been on actions to prevent ill health and premature mortality whilst reducing 
health inequalities.  Peterborough’s public health team provides a healthcare public health 
service to Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG and Borderline and Peterborough LCGs to 
help commissioners design services to meet needs, reduce premature mortality and address 
health inequalities.    Key work programmes in 2014/15 have been the annual suicide audit, a 
review of effectiveness of obesity management services, evaluation of multi-disciplinary team 
(MDT) care for people with complex needs, and review of evidence based approaches for 
stroke services as part of delivery of the cardiovascular disease strategy.

Health Intelligence 
The public health intelligence team support the delivery of improvements to other domains 
within the PHOF through statistical benchmarking of our performance against regions with a 
similar demographic profile, the east of England and England overall. The team also co-
ordinates JSNA and other targeted analytical projects.   During 2014/15 we have undertaken a 
Pharmacy Needs Assessment and a Children and Young Persons JSNA.  In 2015 we plan to 
undertake further JSNAs covering, cardiovascular disease, mental health / illness in adults of 
working age, older people’s primary prevention and eastern european migrants.

6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1 This report covers national Adult Social Care Outcome Framework and Public Health Outcome 
Framework indicators.  The report relates to services provided to the whole city.

7. CONSULTATION

7.1 None.

8. NEXT STEPS

8.1 Further update reports will be brought to the commission in 2015-16 and the commission may 
choose to request a detailed overview of any of the areas of work summarised within this 
report.

42



9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1 None.

10. APPENDICES

10.1

10.2

Appendix One – Quarter 3 ASCOF Performance Summary

Appendix Two – Quarter 3 PHOF Performance Summary

43



This page is intentionally left blank

44



Key: 
↔ - remaining static R - Not achieving  target Page 1 of 4

 ↑ - improving A - behind target but within an agreed margin 

↓ - deteriorating G - on target and / or at or better  

Education, 
Skills and 
University

Culture, 
Recreation 
and the Arts

Safeguarding 
Children and 
Adults

Safe and 
Cohesive 
Communities

Environment 
Capital and 
Energy 
Innovation

Growth, 
Regeneration 
and 
Economic 
Development

Injuries due to falls in people aged 65 and over –per 100,000 of 
population(aged 65+)

↓
2012-2013: 2369 

Baseline Year 
Target is to Decrease

2252.9 A

Year to date up until December
                                                       National Average 2012-2013 : 2011

Total non-elective admissions (general & acute) in to hospital 

↓
2013-2014 : 4,202 

Target is to Decrease by 
1% on 2012-2013

4117 A

Year to date  up until December

Numbers of people receiving community equipment or Assistive 
Technology as ongoing low level support.

↓ 2013-2014: 203  
Monthly Avg:149  99 A

Monthly Figure :Currently only counting Lifeline
Year to date up until December

Social Care user experience survey: The proportion of people 
found it easy or fairly easy to find information and advice about 
support, services or benefits. 

↓ 2012-2013 :77%
Target to increase 2013-2014: 75% R

2014-15 Survey delivered Jan 15 and returned by March 15
Respondents answering easy or fairly easy are counted

Promoting Wellbeing through Universal Services, Information 
and Advice and Guidance

Overview:
Improving our customer service to prevent, reduce and delay 
the need for ongoing support. Promoting wellbeing by 
facilitating people’s access to community support, and 
providing excellent Information, Advice and guidance.

Responses including those not trying to get advice and 
information

Cu
rr

en
t

 The service user survey from which this 
indicator is taken is run in February each year.  
The current results show that people surveyed 
last year did not find it easy to find the 
information they needed.

Pl
an

    During 2014-15 we have taken steps to address 
this by creating an online care directory, reviewing 
our web content, mapping preventative services 
and in February 2015 launching our new front door 
teams.  The 2014/15 survey is currently being 
undertaken and responses are being received.

Achievements
Production and printing of a Care and Support Services 
Directory with online support

Completion of Prevention Strategy and development of a 
directory of preventative services

Re-launching assistive technology and piloting a responder 
service 

Launch of new front door inform and advise and see and 
solve teams 

Opening of the Dementia Resource Centre 

Key programmes
Universal Front Door
Creation of a wide hub of information, advice and 
signposting to community support services.  Early 
identification of presenting needs to ensure a swift and 
proportionate response.  Customer Experience Programme.
Preventative strategy
Development of a prevention strategy which see the whole 
Council and health colleagues working together with the 
voluntary sector to manage demand for services whilst 
improving quality of life.
Website redevelopment

As part of the wider programme within the Council 
redesigning the website to provide guided access to 
information and supported self-service where appropriate.

Assistive technology
Increasing the effective take up of assistive technology, and 
piloting a responder service for those without near relatives 
or friends to respond.

2014-2015

45



Key: 
↔ - remaining static R - Not achieving  target Page 2 of 4

 ↑ - improving A - behind target but within an agreed margin 

↓ - deteriorating G - on target and / or at or better  

Education, 
Skills and 
University

Culture, 
Recreation 
and the Arts

Safeguarding 
Children and 
Adults

Safe and 
Cohesive 
Communities

Environment 
Capital and 
Energy 
Innovation

Growth, 
Regeneration 
and 
Economic 
Development

Enabling people to live fulfilled lives

Delayed transfers of care (delayed days) from hospital per 
100,000 population (aged 18+)

↓ 2013-2014: 1190 
Target: Reducing 1354 R

Year to date up until December

The percentage of Reablement packages ending with reduced or 
no ongoing packages of social care.

↑ 2013-14: 65% 
Target 60%

73%
(279/377)

G

Year to date up until December

Number of separate carers assessments completed per 100,000 
population(aged 18+)

↔ 2013-2014 Full year 360 
Target Increase

270
(385/142,556)

A

2013-2014 RAP England average :380
Year to date up until December

Carers Experience Survey: The percentage of Carers satisfied with 
the support or services they and the person they care for have 
received from Social Services in the last 12 months. 

↑ 2012-2013 : 62.8% 2014-2015: 70.3% A

2014-15 survey data is provisional. Respondents answering 
Extremely, Very or quite satisfied are counted 

Overview:
Reducing and delaying peoples social care needs through 
short term interventions to maximise independence.
Promoting wellbeing through integration with health and 
children’s services to improve, cooperation, partnerships 
and transitions planning
Ensure sustainable improvements to people’s quality of life 
through employment opportunities and support to Carers

Cu
rr

en
t

Although there are very rarely any DTOCs for 
social care reasons, the blue line illustrates the 
growing trend in health delays. As a system we 
need to improve the pathways out of hospital to 
maximise outcomes  for patients  

Pl
an

The orange line shows the target agreed with our 
health colleagues within the Better Care Fund.  
This will be delivered by seven day co-ordination 
and use of residential assessment and rehab beds.

Achievements
Increased capacity within the reablement service

Launch of new enablement and therapy services team 

The Children with Disability Team workers successfully relocated 
to the Town Hall with  Additional Needs Advisors and Transition 
Workers, creating the 0-25 Service

Improved response to satisfaction in the Carers survey carried 
out in Autumn 2014

Expansion of micro enterprises such as Royce Rolls, Friendly Fruit 
Company, Westcombe Wash

Key programmes
7 Day working
As part of the Better Care fund we have agreed a plan to 
move to seven day working in key services, beginning with 
the services that interface most closely with the hospital
Reablement
Having already expanded the domiciliary reablement 
service in 2014/15 we are now also establishing residential 
models within extra care and care home settings.  We are 
also aligning reablement and health provided intermediate 
care services.
Transitions
We have moved to a 0-25 team, which in line with both 
SEND and Care Act reforms is able to begin planning for 
adulthood sooner with children and their families.
Day opportunities
We are in the second phase of consultations on the new 
model for day opportunities having worked with users to 
to shape solutions  

2014-2015

46



Key: 
↔ - remaining static R - Not achieving  target Page 3 of 4

 ↑ - improving A - behind target but within an agreed margin 

↓ - deteriorating G - on target and / or at or better  

Education, 
Skills and 
University

Culture, 
Recreation 
and the Arts

Safeguarding 
Children and 
Adults

Safe and 
Cohesive 
Communities

Environment 
Capital and 
Energy 
Innovation

Growth, 
Regeneration 
and 
Economic 
Development

Personalisation and long term support

Total number of active placements in residential care/nursing 
homes

↓ 2013-2014: 454 
Target: To reduce 464 R

Year to date up until December

Permanent admissions to residential care/nursing homes for older 
people per 100,000 of the population(aged 65+)

↓ 2012-2013: 481 578 G

Data for 2013-2014-England average 650.6

Proportion people using social care who receive self -directed 
support via direct payments 

↑ 2013-14: 12.4% 
Target: 30%

28%
(157/560.7)

A

Year to date average up until December 
2013-2014: England average 19.1%

East of England average 20.9%

Percentage of clients receiving services for 10 months who also 
received a social care review.

↔ Baseline year 
 Target to Increase

94%
(2410/2589)

-

Year to date average up until December

Overview:
Supporting wellbeing through holistic and personal 
assessments, support plans and reviews. Ensure 
appropriate support is given for decision making and that 
Advocacy is available. Shaping a competitive and 
sustainable market with a wide variety of commissioning 
options.

440

445

450

455

460

465

470

475

480

Target: To reduce Total number of active residential care placements
Cu

rr
en

t

Peterborough has comparatively low rates of 
residential admissions, however, last year and 
this year have seen an increasing trend.  Better 
Care Fund requires a downward trend.

Pl
an

Award of new residential / nursing contracts
Increasing capacity in extra care
Commissioning intermediate care beds in extra 
care to avoid over reliance on residential 
homes for interim / intermediate care.

Achievements

Accommodation Strategy completed

Increased number of people receiving direct payments 

Advocacy review completed 

New Extra Care Scheme opened

Key Programmes
Market Position Statement
Accommodation strategy has informed the development of 
Market Position statement which will be published during 
quarter 4.  This seeks to encourage a more varied economy of 
residential care to support quality improvement of that sector.
Advocacy
Following the review of advocacy services there is a plan to 
tender for a lead provider to ensure the availability of 
appropriate advocacy to meet the requirements of the Care 
Act 
Residential Care contracts
Residential Care Contracts – New contracts have been 
developed and new models of delivery.

National eligibility criteria
The Care Act introduces national eligibility criteria which 
focusses on impact to wellbeing and how we work with 
people to identify and lessen the impact on their wellbeing 
will require training and the new models of delivery we are  
putting in place during this winter 

2014-2015

47



Key: 
↔ - remaining static R - Not achieving  target Page 4 of 4

 ↑ - improving A - behind target but within an agreed margin 

↓ - deteriorating G - on target and / or at or better  

Education, 
Skills and 
University

Culture, 
Recreation 
and the Arts

Safeguarding 
Children and 
Adults

Safe and 
Cohesive 
Communities

Environment 
Capital and 
Energy 
Innovation

Growth, 
Regeneration 
and 
Economic 
Development

Safeguarding against harm to wellbeing

The percentage of safeguarding investigations resulting in a 
protection plan

↑ 2013-2014: 39% 52%
(159/307)

G

Year to date average up until December

The percentage of strategy meetings and discussions held within 5 
working days of the initial safeguarding referral.

↓ 2013-2014: 83% 
Target : 85%

80%
(167/209)

A

Year to date average up until December

Proportion of completed safeguarding investigations where 
people reported they were happy that their outcomes had been 
met.

↔ Baseline Year 33%
(77/233)

-

Year to date average up until December

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguarding applications received by 
Peterborough City Council

↑ 2013-2014: 24 327 -

Year to date up until December

Overview:
Oversee and improve the quality of health and social care 
services.  Preventing abuse and investigating instances of 
harm occurring to vulnerable adults.  Using the Mental 
Capacity Act and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards to 
promote the rights of those lacking capacity 

Cu
rr

en
t

The social work teams continue to struggle to 
meet the timelines at times of high activity, for 
example during Large Scale Investigations.  
However, outcome indicators show 
improvement.

Pl
an

The Care Act fundamentally changes the focus of 
safeguarding to ensuring individuals outcomes 
are met.  There is a partnership approach to 
enquiries which ASC taking an overview rather 
than leading all investigations.  Working the 
Safeguarding Board to identify new KPIs

Achievements
Partnership with County Council, Police and Children’s 
Services, now in advanced stages of planning to 
establish a MASH Peterborough Hub

Better Care Fund plans agreed to create a multi-
disciplinary Quality Improvement model – Nurse 
educator in post working with Care Homes

Completed the second year of the national Making 
Safeguarding Personal pilot – commenced reporting on 
outcomes for individuals

Increased use of protection plans
Key programmes
MASH
In line with the Care Act a new front door for 
safeguarding concerns is being set up.  The Multi-
Agency Referral Hub will go live early in 2015/16 
alongside new policies and procedures 
Making Safeguarding Personal
We have been a pilot authority for an outcome 
focussed model of safeguarding for the past two years 
and shared in the national learning. Via the revised 
policy and procedures we are looking to further embed 
this.  We have built this also into our new operational 
models.
Provider Quality
We have established a notifications of concerns 
process for care providers and a multi-agency quality 
group to share intelligence and keep an overview.  We 
are piloting the use of a nurse educator in care homes 
and will expand this multi-disciplinary team.
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards
Referrals has significantly increased following national 
case law.  We are building a new team to respond.

2014-2015

48



Key: Page 1 of 4
↔ - remaining static - behind target and plans are not likely to bring back on target
 ↑ - improving - behind target but plans in place and likely to resolve issues or behind target but good comparative performance/progress
 ↓ - deteriorating - on target

AB
Public Health Report (February 2015)    
Domain: Health Improvement                                                         

Domain Overview:

 Focused on actions to help people make 
healthy choices and lead healthy 
lifestyles. Improvements will, in the main, 
be led locally through commissioned and 
delivered health improvement and wider 
determinants of health programmes.

Domain Objective:

 Improvements against wider factors that 
affect health and wellbeing are addressed 
and people are helped to live healthy 
lifestyles, make healthy choices to reduce 
health inequalities.

Domain Outcomes:

 Improved performance across the 48 
Health Improvement indicators identified 
within the national Public Health 
Outcomes Framework and relevant 
associated wider determinants of health 
indicators.

The Health and Wellbeing Board have established Cardiovascular 
Disease as the local priority and agreed three key work streams. 
The first work stream, ‘Prevention and Early Intervention’ shall be 
advanced through the Health Improvement domain. Activity within 
this work stream will be focused on key risk factors such as 
Tobacco Control, Obesity and Physical activity. The local Smokefree 
Peterborough tobacco control strategic plan has been refreshed, 
with the intent of directing the continuing decrease in local 
smoking prevalence. This has reduced from 25.2% in 2010 to 20.8% 
in 2013, although it remains higher than the national average 
which stands at 18.4%. The Change 4 Life strategic plan that relates 
to obesity and physical activity is being reviewed, to address some 
local prevalence challenging, such as the percentage of overweight 
children, as highlighted within the key metrics section. Associated 
policy groups, accountable to the Public Health Board, are being 
established to oversee these areas of work.

It is intended that a series of implementation programmes will be 
established through which activity related to the priority of 
cardiovascular disease and broader health improvement outcomes 
can be directed and monitored. A Healthy Schools programme for 
Peterborough is being developed with schools being engaged and 
the programme framework drafted. A Healthy Places, focused on 
health improvement outcomes in the community such as access to 
open space, housing, wellbeing and access to healthy food is also 
being progressed, as is a revised Healthy Workplace programme. 

Associated Domain Key Metrics:

Excess Weight (4 – 5 year olds)

↔
England 
22.5% 

Peterborough
24.6% (712/2894)

The % of children in Reception (aged 4 – 5 years old) 
classified as overweight/obese in the academic year.

Excess Weight (10 – 11 year olds)

↔
England 
33.5% 

Peterborough
30.2% (667/2208)

The % of children aged 10 – 11 years old classified as 
overweight/obese in the academic year.

Excess Weight (Adult respondents to Active People 
Survey)

↔
England 
63.8%

Peterborough
65.5% (286/436)

Number of adults with a BMI (Body Mass Index) 
classified as overweight (including obese), calculated 
from the adjusted height and weight variables.

Peterborough’s health improvement ranking across the 48 
indicators within this domain against the England average is 
shown below.

Better Similar Worse No national 
comparison

9 11 15 13http://www.phoutcomes.info/public-health-
outcomes-
framework#gid/1000043/pat/6/ati/102/pag
e/0/par/E12000006/are/E06000031 

49

http://www.phoutcomes.info/public-health-outcomes-framework#gid/1000043/pat/6/ati/102/page/0/par/E12000006/are/E06000031
http://www.phoutcomes.info/public-health-outcomes-framework#gid/1000043/pat/6/ati/102/page/0/par/E12000006/are/E06000031
http://www.phoutcomes.info/public-health-outcomes-framework#gid/1000043/pat/6/ati/102/page/0/par/E12000006/are/E06000031
http://www.phoutcomes.info/public-health-outcomes-framework#gid/1000043/pat/6/ati/102/page/0/par/E12000006/are/E06000031


Key: Page 2 of 4
↔ - remaining static - behind target and plans are not likely to bring back on target
 ↑ - improving - behind target but plans in place and likely to resolve issues or behind target but good comparative performance/progress
 ↓ - deteriorating - on target

AB
Public Health Report (February 2015)    
Domain: Health Protection                                                         

Domain Overview:

Focused on actions to 
protect the population’s 
health from major 
incidents, communicable 
diseases, environmental 
and other threats, whilst 
reducing health inequalities 

Domain Objective:

 The population’s health is 
protected from major 
incidents and other threats

Domain Outcomes:

 Improved performance 
across the 26 Health 
Protection indicators 
identified within the 
national Public Health 
Outcomes Framework

 http://www.phoutcomes.in
fo/public-health-outcomes-
framework#gid/1000043/p
at/6/ati/102/page/3/par/E1
2000006/are/E06000031

Peterborough Health Protection Committee (PHPC) works with partners to 
protect the population’s health and to provide oversight and governance of this 
domain. PHPC will produce an annual report to the Health and Wellbeing Board.     
 Task and Finish groups have been established to oversee work to increase 
uptake of childhood immunisations and the cervical and bowel cancer screening 
programmes. There is lower uptake in the inner city practices and the more 
deprived population which could contribute to inequalities in health outcomes. 
Uptake of cervical cancer tests by young women is lower than in other age 
groups. The Task and Finish groups will report to the HWB in June.

Peterborough continues to experience higher rates of tuberculosis infection than 
England (28.9 per 100,000 compared to 15.1 in 2010-12). Public Health England 
(PHE) has just published a new TB strategy and the Public Health Directorate is 
working with PHE on the management of individual cases and the possible 
introduction of a pilot screening programme for latent TB infection which would 
target the inner city practices. Young migrants from countries with a high TB 
prevalence would be offered a blood test and treatment if required. 

Sexual health is reported to the PHPC. There continues to be concern with the 
teenage pregnancy rate, which is not falling at the national rate. There were 128 
conceptions under the age of 18 in Peterborough in 2012. The babies of teenage 
mothers are less likely to have the best start in life. 
 In addition, the PHOF identifies late diagnosis of HIV infection as having 
increased in Peterborough (61% - 26 people - in 2011-13 compared to 52% in 
2010-12 and 45% in England in 2011-13).  
The PH Directorate will work with the sexual health commissioner to better 
understand the services and improve outcomes.
Uptake and coverage of chlamydia screening in 15-24 year olds is good with the 
second highest detection rate in the East of England in 2012.

Associated Domain Key Metrics:

MMR (two doses, 5 years old)

↓ England 88.3% Peterborough 83.6% 
(2,675/3,200)

% of eligible children who have received two 
doses of vaccine on or after their  first birthday 
and at any time up their 5th birthday

Cancer screening –cervical cancer

↓ England 74.2% Peterborough
71.9% 

(37,531/52,199)

% of eligible women screened adequately 3.5 to 
5.5 years (according to age) on 31st March  2014

Under 18 conceptions (15-17 year olds)

↔ England 27.7/1000 
Peterborough

36/ 1000 
(Total:128/3528)

Peterborough’s health improvement ranking across the 26 
indicators within this domain against the England average is 
shown below.

Better Similar Worse No national 
comparison

10 1 8 7

50

http://www.phoutcomes.info/public-health-outcomes-framework#gid/1000043/pat/6/ati/102/page/3/par/E12000006/are/E06000031
http://www.phoutcomes.info/public-health-outcomes-framework#gid/1000043/pat/6/ati/102/page/3/par/E12000006/are/E06000031
http://www.phoutcomes.info/public-health-outcomes-framework#gid/1000043/pat/6/ati/102/page/3/par/E12000006/are/E06000031
http://www.phoutcomes.info/public-health-outcomes-framework#gid/1000043/pat/6/ati/102/page/3/par/E12000006/are/E06000031
http://www.phoutcomes.info/public-health-outcomes-framework#gid/1000043/pat/6/ati/102/page/3/par/E12000006/are/E06000031


Key: Page 3 of 4
↔ - remaining static - behind target and plans are not likely to bring back on target
 ↑ - improving - behind target but plans in place and likely to resolve issues or behind target but good comparative performance/progress
 ↓ - deteriorating - on target

AB
Public Health Report (February 2015)    
Domain: Healthcare public health                                                         

Domain Overview:
Focused on actions to prevent ill health and 
premature mortality, whilst reducing health 
inequalities 

Peterborough’s public health team provides a 
healthcare public health advice service 
(HPHAS) to Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
CCG and Borderline and Peterborough LCGs to 
help commissioners design services to meet 
needs, reduce premature mortality and 
address health inequalities.  

Domain Objective:
 To reduce the number of people living 

with preventable ill health and people 
dying prematurely, whilst reducing the 
gap between communities.

 To provide advice to commissioners of 
healthcare services to identify priorities, 
use best available evidence and design 
pathways of care that are equitable and 
meet the needs of the population.

Domain Outcomes:
 Improved performance across the 52 

Healthcare indicators identified within 
the national Public Health Outcomes 
Framework.

The healthcare public health advice service offers advice to the NHS 
on a range of aspects including; assessing health needs, reviewing 
service provision, deciding priorities, developing care pathways, 
reviewing evidence of best practice and evaluating services. The 
recommendations made by public health will help shape healthcare 
services to improve performance as measured in the public health 
outcomes framework. Some examples of current activity are noted 
below:
Annual suicide audit – public health are leading work to implement 
the local suicide prevention strategy, which includes an annual audit 
on suicides. This detailed information will be used to determine risk 
factors for suicide and will aid resource allocation for interventions 
to prevent suicide. It will also serve as a metric to measure the 
effectiveness of local suicide prevention initiatives into the future.
Obesity management services - Peterborough HPHAS is working 
with the provider of the tier 3 obesity management service to 
determine its effectiveness in terms of quality, outcomes, cost-
effectiveness and equality. Recommendations will include options 
for improving the service and will consider how the whole pathway 
for weight management can be aligned in Peterborough.
Evaluation of multi-disciplinary team (MDT) care for people with 
complex needs. Public health are providing the evaluation 
framework to review the effectiveness of MDT care in terms of its 
structure, process and the outcomes achieved. This will identify 
good working practice, gaps in service provision and areas for service 
improvement – useful to commissioners in ensuring future models 
of care are efficient, effective and meet patients’ needs.
Implementation of the CVD strategy HPHAS will support the 
development and delivery of the CVD strategy, and work with 
commissioners to advise on evidence based approaches for stroke 
services.

Associated Domain Key Metrics:

Mortality from all causes considered preventable 
(persons) 2011 - 2013

↔
England

183.9 
Peterborough

215.1 (943 deaths)

Age-standardised rate of mortality from causes 
considered preventable per 100,000 population

Under 75 mortality rate from all cardiovascular 
diseases (persons) 2011 -2013

↔
England

78.2 
Peterborough

98.4 (377 deaths)

Age-standardised rate of mortality from all 
cardiovascular diseases in persons aged <75 years of 
age per 100,000 population

Suicide rate 2011 - 2013

↔
England

8.8 
Peterborough

10.4 (56 deaths)

Age-standardised mortality rate from suicide and 
injury of undetermined intent per 100,000 population

Peterborough’s health improvement ranking across the 52 
indicators within this domain against the England average is 
shown below.

Better Similar Worse No national 
comparison

1 37 11 3

51



Key: Page 4 of 4
↔ - remaining static - behind target and plans are not likely to bring back on target
 ↑ - improving - behind target but plans in place and likely to resolve issues or behind target but good comparative performance/progress
 ↓ - deteriorating - on target

AB Public Health Report (February 2015)    
Domain: Health Intelligence                                                         

Domain Overview:
 
The Public Health Intelligence team support the 
delivery of improvements to other domains 
within the PHOF through statistical 
benchmarking of our performance against 
regions with a similar demographic profile, the 
East of England and England overall. The team 
also co-ordinates targeted analytical projects 
ranging from Joint Strategic Needs Assessments 
(JSNAs) to ad hoc analysis for stakeholders within 
PCC and across the wider healthcare community. 
JSNA Themes 2015: 
 Cardiovascular disease
 Mental health/mental illness in adults of 

working age
 Older People’s Primary Prevention
 Eastern European Migrants 

Our JSNA strategy focuses on delivering 
health intelligence in line with Health and 
Wellbeing Board priorities and, where 
appropriate, JSNAs target specific 
demographic groups in conjunction with 
chosen themes, i.e. mental health/mental 
illness in adults of working age rather than in 
all age groups. This allows us to more 
adequately address the specific needs of 
other demographic groups (e.g. mental 
health in older residents) in subsequent 
JSNAs. 

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment
Health and Wellbeing Boards have a statutory duty to publish and keep 
up to date a statement of the need for pharmaceutical services. Findings 
from our 2015 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) include –

 Peterborough has a higher number of pharmacies than the 
national average, based on the size our population.

 86.6% (317/366) of respondents to our PNA resident survey 
rated the quality of pharmacy services in Peterborough as ‘good’ 
or better.

 Existing pharmacy services could be expanded to improve some 
of Peterborough’s poorer healthcare outcomes, such as our high 
rate of tuberculosis incidence, high levels of teenage pregnancy 
and low rates of chlamydia detection. 

Children & Young Persons JSNA 
Our Children & Young Persons JSNA assessed the physical and mental 
health of our younger population and has, to date, led to the 
development of two new ‘deep dive’ work streams –

 A revised system/pathway approach to children's oral health in 
its entirety is in development involving stakeholders across the 
CCG. This includes agreeing universal and targeted interventions 
as part of the healthy child programme, informed by evidence 
based guidance.

 A collaborative project between stakeholders across the CCG to 
compile information from various datasets with regards to self-
harm in young people. This will allow us to better identify those 
at risk of developing mental health issues that lead to self-harm 
and initiate targeted early interventions, using best practice 
sourced from stakeholder workshops.   

Associated Domain Key Metrics:

Pharmacy provision

- England 22 Peterborough 23

The number of pharmacies within an area per 100,000 
of resident population (all ages).

Tuberculosis incidence rate

↓ England 15.1 Peterborough 28.9 (53 
occurrences)

The incidence rate of tuberculosis, expressed as a rate 
per 100,000 of population (all ages). 

Children with one or more decayed, missing or filled 
teeth

* England 27.9% Peterborough 36.1%

The percentage of children recorded as having one or 
more decayed, missing or filled teeth. 

Young People Hospital Admissions for Self Harm

↓ England 352.3 Peterborough 506.9 (534 
admissions)

The number of hospital admissions for people aged 10-
24 as a result of self-harm, expressed as rate per 

100,000 of population (10-24 year olds).

*Trend data unavailable 

52



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 8

10 MARCH 2015 Public Report

Report of the Director of Corporate Affairs, and Sarah Shuttlewood, Acting Director of  
Performance and Delivery, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG)                                   

Contact Officer(s) – Jessica Bawden
Contact Details - 01223 725584

CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP 
PERFORMANCE REPORT

1. PURPOSE

1.1 The Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues has asked for an update on the CCG’s performance 
against its targets over the last year. The CCG regular reviews performance at its Governing 
Body meetings held in public and publishes its performance reports.

At the time of writing, full year performance figures are not available but the paper that is 
provided gives detail on the current performance against a number of targets. 

The CCG Assurance Framework was published by NHS England in 2013. The CCG has 
aligned its reporting to the methodology and thresholds included within the CCG assurance 
framework. It includes the balanced scorecard. 

Outlined within the report is a summary of the key areas of concern/underperformance that the 
CCG Governing Body and LCG boards need to be aware of. Local LCGs / Management Teams 
manage the recovery programme and hold the provider to account. More detailed information is 
available throughout the report, attached as appendix 1.

The CCG has reported regularly to the Commission on its priority areas of work, and will 
continue to do so on a quarterly basis:

 Older People 
 End of Life Care
 Coronary Heart Disease

The CCG is currently working on its planning for 2015/16 and will report to the Commission on 
our revised priorities at the next meeting.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 To note and discuss the content of this paper.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1

3.2

The purpose of the integrated delivery report is to brief the CCG Governing Body on progress 
against the key Cambridgeshire and Peterborough performance deliverables and contract 
notices being applied to service providers. The report reflects performance against key 
indicators outlined in the NHS Outcomes framework, The CCG assurance framework, the NHS 
Constitution and the NHS Mandate.

The report contains a dashboard on the 2014/15 service performance indicators for each of the 

53



3.3

following organisations: 
 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
 Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals Foundation NHS Trust (PSHFT) 
 Papworth Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (Papworth) 
 Cambridgeshire Community Services NHS Trust (CCS) 
 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust (CPFT) 
 111
 Delayed Transfer of Care (DOTC)

The dashboard only shows those areas where performance is below required levels, however, 
information relating to all indicators is available upon request.

4. KEY ISSUES

4.1 To note the performance dashboard for Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG. Please note 
this is an edited version of the Full Integrated Delivery report due to the length of this document. 
The full report is available on the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning 
Group website here:
http://www.cambridgeshireandpeterboroughccg.nhs.uk/governing-body-meetings-2015.htm

5. APPENDICES

5.1 Appendix 1. Integrated Delivery Report for Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical 
Commissioning Group. February 2015.

5.2 Appendix 2 Acronyms used in the Integrated Delivery Report

54

http://www.cambridgeshireandpeterboroughccg.nhs.uk/governing-body-meetings-2015.htm


2014/15 Integrated Delivery Report

February 2015

1

55



Contents

2

Section Indicators Pg.

Executive summary - 4

LCG Overview 5

1. Good Quality Care • Domain Scorecard
• Provider Overview
• Serious Incidents and Never Events

7
9
10

2.  NHS Constitution • Overall Delivery
• NHS Constitution Scorecard
• RTT indicators
• A&E access
• Cancer waits
• Ambulance performance
• Diagnostic Waits

12
13
16
17
18
19
20

3.  The NHS Mandate • Overall Delivery
• NHS Mandate Scorecard
• HCAI

22
23
25

6. Quality Premium • Scorecard 27

7. Finance • Overview
• Strategic aims & CCG Assurance
• Programme Spend
• LCG 2014/15 budgets
• Risk

30
32
33
34
36

8. Programme Management Board • Executive Summary 39

56



Contents – pg. 2

3

Section Indicators Pg.

9. Provider profiles - Service performance & 
quality indicators and contractual levers 
summaries

• PSHFT
• CCS
• CPFT
• Papworth
• 111
• DTOC

42
49
52
57
62
63

57



Executive summary 

4

Comments |

The CCG has aligned its reporting to the methodology and thresholds included within the CCG assurance framework and the 
integrated report has been updated to reflect this.

The balanced scorecard is required to be published by each CCG and the latest one is provided below:

• For the good quality care domain, the CCG self assessment remains at amber green.

• For the NHS Constitution domain, the CCG self assessment is red as RTT 52 week waits, Diagnostic Waits, A&E waits, 
Ambulance performance, 31 day cancer waits for subsequent radiotherapy and mixed sex accommodation breaches are 
below the required standard.

• For the health outcomes domain, the CCG self assessment is amber green as most organisations are on target with HCAI. 
This will continue to be closely monitored.

• For the Finance domain, the CCG self assessment is amber red. At month10 there is a year to date overspend reported 
which requires further savings of £2.2m to be identified and delivered to meet the forecast break-even position. 

58



Headline Summary

5

Outlined below is a summary of the key areas of concern/underperformance that the CCG Governing Body and LCG boards need to be aware 
of. Local LCGs / Management Teams manage the recovery programme and hold the provider to account.   More detailed information is available 
throughout the report. * These areas are not covered within this report but further details can be found in the latest Quality Report to the Patient
Safety and Quality Committee. In next month’s report, this section will be expanded to give a more comprehensive summary of areas requiring 
improvement. 

CATCH and Cam Health HCP and Hunts Health

Isle of Ely and Wisbech Borderline and Peterborough

CUHFT CPFT Papworth

1. RTT
2. Diagnostic Waits
3. A&E 
4. Cancer
5. Stroke
6. Contract Queries
7. Implementation of 

EPIC IT System

1. RTT
2. IAPT
3. CQC Status
4. Contract Queries 
5. Pressure on community 

teams*
6. Safeguarding Adults*
7. Cost Improvement 

Plan*
8. PREVENT training*

1. Cancer
2. HCAI
3. Contract Queries 

CCS QEH

1. CQC Status 
2. Contract Queries 
3. Mandatory Training*

1. RTT 
2. Diagnostic Waits
3. A&E 
4. HCAI 
5. CQC Status 
6. Contract Queries

HHCT

1. Diagnostic Waits
2. A&E
3. Mixed Sex Accommodation Breaches
4. HCAI
5. CQC Status
6. Contract Queries 
7. Medical Workforce*
8. Adult safeguarding*
9. Mandatory Training*

PSHFT

1. RTT
2. A&E 
3. Stroke
4. CQC Status 
5. Contract Queries
6. Mandatory training*
7. Appraisals*

CCG

A&E Referral to Treatment Ambulance

A&E performance is an issue for all providers, with all 
trusts  failing the standard,. The reasons are multi 
factorial  but the key  reasons are: 1) Internal trust 
processes not working effectively 2) increased activity 
leading to increased admissions. 3) Discharge 
planning not delivering Slide 17.

RTT is an issue across the majority of systems with 
extra resource being provided from NHS England to 
reduce backlog. Capacity is affected by non-elective 
demand. Slide 16.

Ambulance performance is challenging for our 
provider EEAST. They have failed to achieve the Red 
1, Red 2 and CAT A standards year to date. Slide 19.

59



GOOD QUALITY CARE
Section one

6

60



Domain scorecard

7

61



Domain scorecard

8

Comments |

11 areas out of 63 have been flagged as Yes by the CCG, an increase of one on the previous month.

QEH flagged as yes as they have a case of MRSA assigned to them for December.

Fig 1. CCG Assurance Framework Performance Year to Date    

62



Provider Overview

9

Comments |

The total number of C Difficile cases for December YTD is outlined above.  Sanctioned cases against trajectory for December 
YTD are: CUHFT 28/42, PSHFT 23/31, HHCT 9/7, CCS 2/2, QEH 33/14 and Papworth 3/4. Further details are provided in the 
HCAI section of this report.

Provisional C Difficile cases for January are 4 for CUHFT, 2 for HHCT, 1 for Papworth, 7 for PSHFT and 1 for QEH. 

There were no reported Never events in December 2014 or January 2015.

Friends and Family recommend % for December is shown above. Contract and quality leads continue to have discussions with 
Providers with regard to actions they are undertaking to improve performance.  The results of the Friends and Family Test for
maternity services can be found on provider pages.

CUHFT percentage recommend for A&E is above the England average of 86%:

CUHFT PSHFT HHCT CCS CPFT QEH Papworth

Safety | MRSA – December YTD 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 - 1/0 0/0

Safety | C Diff – December YTD 39/42 25/31 13/7 2/2 - 35/14 6/4

Safety | Never Events – December 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Experience | Friends & Family Recommend % : A&E –

December
89% 95% 96% - - 93% -

Experience | Friends & Family Recommend %: 

Inpatient – December
95% 95% 97% - - 94% 97%

Quality and Patient Safety Provider Summary

Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec -14

92.9% 91.5% 88.1% 90.5% 93.3% 89.3% 90.6% 85.2% 89.0%

63



Serious Incidents and Never Events

10

Source: NRLS reporting

Comments |   
The number of Serious Incidents (SIs) reported during December 2014 are outlined above.

# Managed by Suffolk CCG     *Managed by West Norfolk CCG   ̂  Managed by East & North Herts CCG 

Organisation SIs reported 
during January 
2015 (including 
Never events)

Never events 
reported during 
January 2015

Final investigation 
reports received 
during January 
2015

SIs closed  
during 
January 2015

Open SIs as at 
31 January 2015

SIs Overdue 
closure excluding 
‘Stop the Clock’

C&P CCG 1 0 0 0 1 0

CCS 22 0 19 16 31 0

CPFT 8 0 6 7 15 0

CUHFT 10 0 7 6 23 2

EAAST 2 0 0 0 9 NA#

HHCT 5 0 5 5 13 0

Herts 
Urgent Care 
/ 111

1 0 0 0 2^ 0

MIIU, P’boro 0 0 0 0 0 0

Papworth 0 0 1 1 0 0

PSHFT 12 0 6 6 23 0

QEHKL* 4 0 1 0 7 NA*

UCC 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 65 0 45 41 124 2

64



NHS CONSTITUTION
Section two

11

65



Overall delivery | NHS Constitution

12

Comments | 

This report will focus on those areas still experiencing difficulties as follows:

• RTT - The CCG is meeting the national operating standards for all pathways in December: admitted pathways (91.9%), non-
admitted pathways (97.0%) and incomplete pathways (92.9%). The CCG is also meeting all RTT operating standards on a 
year to date basis. The 52 week wait for a C&P CCG patient at London North West  Healthcare Trust is being investigated. 

• Diagnostics –The CCG missed the national standard in December with 4.5% of patients waiting 6 weeks + for key diagnostic 
tests.  CUHFT, HHCT and QEH all failed to meet the target with 8.6%, 5.9% and 2.6% of patients waiting 6+ weeks 
respectively.

• A&E - The CCG failed to meet the A&E standard for the month of December (81.8%). All providers failed the standard: 
CUHFT (69.7%), HHCT (87.8%), PSHFT (85.2%) and QEH (85.6%). In January the CCG has again failed the target (85.8%) 
with continued under achievement at all trusts.

• Cancer - The CCG met all standards in December with the exception of 31 day wait for subsequent radiotherapy (92.2%). On 
a year to date basis all standards are being met.

• Ambulance performance remains challenged and for the month of December, Red1, Red 2 and Category A19 minute 
performance were below standard. 

• There were 5 Mixed Sex Accommodation breaches for CCG patients in December.

• Urgent Operations Cancelled – there were 14 urgent operations cancelled in December – 11 at CUHFT and 3 at Papworth.  

A detailed breakdown by individual indicator is included in the following sections.

66



NHS Constitution scorecard 

13Key

���� Improved performance as compared to prior period

���� Deteriorated performance as compared to prior period

���� No Change 

67



NHS Constitution scorecard – pg.2

14Key

���� Improved performance as compared to prior period

���� Deteriorated performance as compared to prior period

���� No Change 

68



NHS Constitution scorecard – pg.3 

15

Comments |

The following areas will be covered in more detail using Exception Reports (ER):

1. RTT - pg. 16 
2. Accident and Emergency - pg. 17
3. Cancer Waits - pg.18
4. Ambulance - pg. 19
5. Diagnostics – pg. 20

Key

Green | No indicators rated red

Amber green | No indicators rated red but future concerns

Amber red | one indicator rated red

Red | Two or more indicators rated red

69



ER 1 | Referral to treatment

16

Fig 1.  CCG wide RTT performance over time

Fig. 2  CCG over 52 week waits reported by providers

Fig 3.  CCG specialty level breakdown

Comments |
At an aggregated level, the CCG is meeting the national 
operating standards for all pathways in December: admitted 
(91.9%), incomplete pathways (92.9%) and non-admitted 
(97.%). On a year to date basis the CCG is meeting all 
operating standards. 

National funding to enable CCGs/systems to treat patients 
that had been waiting longer than 16 weeks was made 
available in August 2014. There was an expectation 
nationally that by treating the long waiters up to end of 
November performance would dip but would provide much 
greater assurance that performance could be achieved from 
December 2014 to year end. There is concern that some 
systems have achieved the aggregate performance during 
the last few months meaning they haven’t cleared the back 
log as intended and performance could be compromised 
going forward. The additional funding could be withdrawn if 
the standard is not delivered up to the end of the year.
There was one 52 week breach at an out of area provider. 
This is being followed up with Sutton CCG to find out why 
and when the patient will be treated. We are following this up 
to ensure the appropriate contractual levers are  applied.

Figure 3 shows the number of specialties not meeting the 
standard at CCG level. Admitted pathway includes: ENT 
(85.8%), General Surgery (89.5%), Neurosurgery (66.7%) 
and T&O (85.1%). Non-admitted includes: ENT (93.%), 
Neurology (94.1%), Neurosurgery (93.0%), Ophthalmology 
(93.8%) and Plastic  Surgery (93.8%). 

All of the above are being managed via contractual 
meetings. Root causes and actions are included in the 
provider section of the report.

Number of specialties Not meeting national standard

% 18 wk RTT

Admitted 4

Non Admitted 5

Incomplete 6

70



ER 2 | Accident & emergency 

17

Fig 1.  CCG wide A&E performance over 2014/15 Comments |

The CCG failed to meet the A&E standard for the month 
of December (81.8%). All providers failed the standard: 
CUHFT (69.7%), HHCT (87.8%),PSHFT (85.2%) and 
QEH (85.6%). 

Figures for January are also now available with 85.8% 
achieved for the month. CUHFT (81.4%), HHCT (89.9%) 
PSHFT (81.6%) and QEH (81.4%). Performance has 
improved at CUHFT and HHCT but deteriorated at 
PSHFT and QEH during January.  

For each provider, A&E and RTT remain key service 
performance elements in the contract and as such 
contract queries are raised for under performance and 
remedial action plans submitted to commissioners to 
address under performance.

The CCG is investing significant resources in working 
with each system to implement the system resilience 
plans. We have seen some reduction in both A&E 
attendances and non elective admissions however 
performance continues to be well below the required 
performance level. The COO has requested from each 
CEO/COO of provider organisations that the systems 
consider undertaking a ‘break the cycle’ exercise that has 
been done in London in an attempt to shift performance 
up to the standard expected. 

Provider level information is available in the provider 
performance section.

Fig. 2  CCG monthly performance in 2014/15

71



ER 3 | Cancer waits

18

Comments |
The CCG met all standards in December with the exception of 31 day wait for subsequent radiotherapy (92.2%). On a year to 
date basis all standards are being met:

Provider level information is available in the provider performance section. 

Fig 1. 31 day wait for subsequent radiotherapy

72



ER 4 | Ambulance performance

19

Comments
For the month of December, performance was as follows: 
• Red 1 (8 minute) performance was below the 75% standard at 71.7%.
• Red 2 (8 minute) performance was below the 75% standard at 61.1%.
• Category A19 minute performance was below the 95% standard at 90.3%.

EEAST performance against both the National and  Local performance targets and the 
performance trajectories as set under the business case dated June 2014 are shown in the table 
below. 
The performance trajectories included in the business case have yet to be revised to recognise the 
impact of the unexpected increase in demand experienced in the contract year to date. Under the 
terms of the contract, the over performance has been paid for in full. We would therefore expect on 
revision, for there to be only a slight change in the delivery of the trajectory as noted on table 1 
below, so as to take account of the both the  time taken to mobilise additional resource and the 
change in output that may arise in connection with this

We continue to work with EEAST to manage the under performance against both national targets 
and local trajectories. 

Activity & Finance (EEAST for C&PCCG)
Actual demand has exceeded contracted activity by 0.4% up to the end of December 2014 as 
follows:

Handover to Clear Performance – target 100% within 1 5 minutes

Performance in December is as follows :
Addenbrookes: Dec 2014 69% (Nov 2014 74%), Hinchingbrooke Hospital: Dec 2014 57% (Nov 
2014 54%), Peterborough City Hospital: Dec 2014 45% (Nov 2014 44%).

Under the terms of the contract, penalties are issued for all handover to clear exceeding 30 and 60 
minutes at rates of £20 and £100 per breach respectively.

An improvement plan is in place under contract in respect of this performance.

Fig 1. 

Fig 2. 

Fig 3. 
2014/15 Actual 2014/15 

contract
Variance

Hear & treat 4,126 4,463 (337) (7.5%)
See & treat 28,511 28,922 (411) (1.4%)
See, treat & convey 51,675 50,608 1,067 2.1%

Quarter 3 
2014/15

Target Trajectory 
Q3

Actual 
performance Q3

Red 1 (8 minutes) 75% (National) 80.8% 75.2%
Red 2 (8 minutes) 75% (National) 74.7% 61.0%
A19 (19 minutes) 95% (National) 92.9% 88.0%
Green 1 (20 minutes) 75% (Local) 94.5% 80.9%
Green 2 (30 minutes) 75% (Local) 95.7% 81.4%
Green 3 face to face (50 minutes) 75% (Local) 95.5% 92.9%
Green 4 face to face (90 minutes) 75% (Local) 90.1% 89.3%

73



ER 5 Diagnostic Waits

20

Comments |

The CCG missed the 99% target for patients waiting less than 6 weeks for diagnostic tests in December (95.5%).

This was driven by under achievement at CUHFT (91.4%), Hinchingbrooke (94.1%) and QEH (97.4%)

The underlining reasons for the target being missed at these providers are addressed on pages 66, 84 and 108 for CUHFT, 
Hinchingbrooke and QEH respectively.

Fig 1: Performance against the 99% within 6 weeks t arget for Diagnostic Waits for December

74



THE MANDATE
Section three

21

75



Overall delivery | The Mandate 2014/15

22

Comments |

The objectives in the Mandate for 2014/15 focus on those areas identified as being of greatest importance to people. They include 
transforming how well the NHS performs by:

1. Preventing people from dying prematurely
2. Enhancing the quality of life for those with long term conditions
3. Helping people to recover from episodes of ill health or following injury
4. Ensuring people have a positive experience of care
5. Treating and Caring for People in a safe environment and protecting them from avoidable harm

These areas correspond to the five parts of the NHS Outcomes Framework (previously know as “Domains” for 2013/14) 
which will be used to measure progress and will be the areas that we are reporting against in 2014/15.

76



The Mandate scorecard – pg. 1

23

77



The Mandate scorecard – pg. 2

24

Comments |

The following areas will be covered in more detail, using exception reporting (ER):

6. MRSA and Clostridium Difficile Infections

Updates on the FFT results are covered in the provider performance sections of this report.

With regard to Emergency Admissions, LCGs continue to engage with Practices to ensure they are managing patients through 
disease registers, prescribing reminders, medication reviews etc. in order to reduce admissions.  Actual patient numbers are very 
small.

78



ER 6  | HCAI

25

Fig 1.  CCG wide C diff by month (up to end of December) 

Fig. 2  CCG wide MRSA by month (up to end of December) 

Comments |

Clostridium Difficile
In December, the total number of CCG cases was 7 against a monthly 
ceiling of 13. 

Further information is available in the provider performance section.

MRSA
There were no reported MRSA cases in December.

Trust 14/15 Annual  
Trajectory

December 
Data

December
Target

CCS 2 0 0.17
CUHFT 42 3 3.50
HHCT 7 0 0.58
Papworth 4 1 0.33
PSHFT 31 2 2.58
QEH 14 4 1.17

Fig. 3  Trust December C Diff data

79



QUALITY PREMIUM
Section six

26

80



Quality Premium scorecard

27

81



Quality Premium scorecard

28

Comments |

The ‘quality premium’ is intended to reward clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) for improvements in the quality of the services that they 
commission and for associated improvements in health outcomes and reducing inequalities. 

The quality premium paid to CCGs in 2015/16 – to reflect the quality of the health services commissioned by them in 2014/15 – will be based on 
six measures that cover a combination of national and local priorities. These are: 
• reducing potential years of lives lost through causes considered amenable to healthcare and addressing locally agreed priorities for reducing 

premature mortality (15% of quality premium); 
• improving access to psychological therapies (15% of quality premium); 
• reducing avoidable emergency admissions (25% of quality premium); 
• addressing issues identified in the 2013/14 Friends and Family Test (FFT), supporting roll out of FFT in 2014/15 and showing improvement in

a locally selected patient experience indicator (15% of quality premium); 
• improving the reporting of medication-related safety incidents based on a locally selected measure (15% of quality premium); 
• a further local measure that should be based on local priorities such as those identified in joint health and wellbeing strategies (15% of quality 

premium).  It has been agreed that for 2014/15 the local measure for C&P CCG will be the number of physical health checks in people with 
severe mental illness.

A CCG will not receive a quality premium if it: 
a) is not considered to have operated in a manner that is consistent with Managing Public Money1 during 2014/15; or 
b) incurs an unplanned deficit during 2014/15, or requires unplanned financial support to avoid being in this position; or 
c) incurs a qualified audit report in respect of 2014/15. 

NHS England also reserves the right not to make any payment where there is a serious quality failure during 2014/15. 

The total quality premium payment for a CCG will be reduced if its providers do not meet the NHS Constitution rights or pledges for patients in 
relation to (a) maximum 18-week waits from referral to treatment, (b) maximum four-hour waits in A&E departments, (c) maximum 14-day wait 
from a urgent GP referral for suspected cancer, and (d) maximum 8-minute responses for Category A red 1 ambulance calls.  

The maximum quality premium payment for a CCG will be expressed as £5 per head of population, calculated using the same methodology as 
for CCG running costs. (This is in addition to a CCG’s main financial allocation for 2014/15 and in addition to its running costs allowance.) 

The C&P CCG population is 891,298 and based on these calculations, the CCG would have an opportunity to achieve a maximum quality 
premium payment of £4,456,490 in 2015/16 if each of the 6 measures above are fully achieved and assuming the pre-payment criterion is fully 
achieved.  This is shown as the first figure in the total value row on the table on the previous page.  

We are proactively overseeing each area to ensure we maximise the opportunity to secure a quality premium payment  - a further summary.

82



FINANCE
Section seven

29

83



30

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
Year to date summary  

  
Table 1 I&E Summary - January 2015 (Month 10)   

  Year to Date   Forecast Position   

  Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance 

      Fav / (Adv)     Fav / (Adv) 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 %   £'000 £'000 £'000 %   

Programme 739,379 740,392 (1,014) -0.1%   889,701 889,701 0 0.0%   

Running Costs 15,807 15,618 189 1.2%   18,887 18,887 0 0.0%   

Total 755,186 756,010 -825 -0.1%   908,588 908,588 0 0.0%   

 
   
 
 
 
Key Points 
 

• Table 1, above, shows the CCG is reporting a year to date deficit of £0.8m.   A year end breakeven position is still being forecast but this is reliant on 
an additional £2.1m of savings being found by year end above the £2m that has already being shown against individual budgets.  A potential £3.6m 
further saving  has been identified and work is ongoing to ensure these are delivered. The table above shows the movement from month 9 to month 
10. 
 

• The table below shows that, once non -recurrent spend, non- recurrent  QIPP, the impact of the 2013/14 deficit repayment are removed, the CCG has 
an underlying (recurrent) deficit of £7.9m (0.9%) which is below the ideal 2% underlying surplus required by NHSE, and indicates an increase in the 
financial challenge for 2015/16. We will continue to monitor performance against this in future reports.  
 

• The CCG reviews financial risks and mitigations monthly. There are £43.4m of risk which has now been built into the forecast leaving a further residual 
risk of £5.4m.  Currently there is a shortfall in mitigations of £3.9m which represents no change from the previous report.  

 

Worsening Forecasts £'000 

Individual placements  -581 

GP prescribing -205 

Other -200 

  -986 

Offset by   

MRET 619 

  619 

Month 10 movement -367 

Month 9 recovery plan requirement -1,806 

Month 10 recovery plan requirement -2,173 

84



31

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
Table 2 CCG underlying position £'000 

Forecast Surplus / (deficit) 0 

Remove Non recurrent spend 2,085 

Remove benefits from 13/14 settlements (5,000) 

Remove non rec QIPP (12,120) 

Add FYE QIPP 2,200 

Add back deficit repayment 4,867 

Underlying (recurrent) surplus (7,968) 
 

 

  
 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Plan 73.8 148.4 223.2 297.8 372.9 447.6 530.4 605.9 678.3 775.2 0.0 0.0

Total 73.7 148.1 222.9 297.3 374.1 449.0 531.0 606.5 679.0 755.9 0.0 0.0

0.0

100.0

200.0

300.0

400.0

500.0

600.0

700.0

800.0

900.0

£m

Total Programme + Running Costs

-2,000

-1,500

-1,000

-500

0

500

1,000

£'m

Feb-

14

Mar-

14

Apr-

14

May-

14
Jun-14Jul-14

Aug-

14

Sep-

14
Oct-14

Nov-

14

Dec-

14
Jan-15

180 -1,79 51 257 -30 231 -1,73 -184 707 -1 -4 -119

12 month rolling run rate

64
66
68
70
72
74
76
78
80
82

£'m

Feb-

14

Mar-

14

Apr-

14

May-

14

Jun-

14
Jul-14

Aug-

14

Sep-

14

Oct-

14

Nov-

14

Dec-

14

Jan-

15

72 76 72 73 73 73 75 73 81 74 71 75

Monthly Programme spend

85



32

STRATEGIC AIMS & CCG ASSURANCE
2. STRATEGIC AIMS/EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY GOALS AND CCG  GOVERNING BODY ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK & RISK 

REGISTER REFERENCE 
 
2.1 The paper links to Strategic Aims 2 (Finance) and 3 (Change Management and Transformation) and links specifically to the following risks 

on the CCG Governing Body Assurance Framework and Risk Register:  F2 – Achievement of the Financial plan for 2013/14: F2 – Risks 
associated with the on-going retrospective NHS CHC claims process; and CMT1 – Risk to delivery of QIPP and the System Reform Plan. 
 

2.2 It also links to EDS Goal 1 – Better health outcomes for all. 
 
3. CCG ASSURANCE – FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
  
NHS England has produced a CCG assurance process; the table above covers the financial performance element.  The column “CCG 
Performance” shows our assessment of the CCG against the standards where we have one red indicator.    
 
  
Financial Performance   Individual indicator RAG Rating Threshold 

No. Indicator 

Primary / 

supporting 

indicator 

CCG 

performance Green Amber Green Amber / Red Red 

1 Underlying recurrent surplus Primary  -0.9% >= 2% 1% - 1.99% 0% - 0.99% < 0% 

2 Surplus - year to date performance Primary  -0.1% >=1% >= 0.8% >= 0.5% < 0.1% 

3 Surplus - full year forecast Primary  0.0% >=1% >= 0.8% >= 0.5% < 0.1% 

4 Management of 2% NR funds within agreed process Supporting Yes Yes     No 

5 QIPP - year to date delivery Primary 65.00% >= 95% of plan >= 80% of plan >= 50% of plan < 50% of plan 

6 QIPP - full year forecast Primary 63.6% >= 95% of plan >= 80% of plan >= 50% of plan < 50% of plan 

7 Activity trends year to date Supporting * <101% of plan <102% of plan <103% of plan < 104% of plan 

8 Activity trends - full year forecast Supporting * <101% of plan <102% of plan <103% of plan < 104% of plan 

9 Running costs Primary = RCA <=RCA     > RCA 

10 

Clear identification of risks against financial delivery 

and mitigations Primary   

Indicator met in 

full 

Indicator part met 

- limited 

uncovered risk 

Indicator part met 

- material 

uncovered risk 

Indicator not 

met 

 

86



33

PROGRAMME SPEND NOVEMBER 2014
4 Programme Spend – January  2015 (Month 10) 

• The programme budget is 
showing a year to date 
overspend of £1.0 million. With 
a breakeven Forecast Outturn 
position. 

 
• Full month nine monitoring has 

been received from the main 
acute Trusts, apart from 
CUHFT who are still having 
issues reporting on activity 
due to the implementation of 
the new IT system.  However 
a year end settlement of 
£179m has been reached with 
the Trust.  

 
• Eight months actuals have 

been received for GP 
prescribing and is included in 
this report. 

 
• The individual placements 

budget is forecasting a £5.7m 
overspend and is of real 
concern.  A review of high cost 
placements and a lower 
benchmark price have been 
implemented.Work is ongoing  
to reduce expenditure & 
improve the forecast.  

  Year to Date Forecast Position 

  Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance 

ACUTE SERVICES               

CUHFT 146,595 149,458 (2,864) (2.0) 175,539 179,350 (3,811) (2.2) 

Peterborough 101,692 105,284 (3,592) (3.5) 121,705 126,339 (4,634) (3.8) 

Hinchingbrooke 68,416 71,228 (2,812) (4.1) 82,058 85,297 (3,239) (3.9) 

Kings Lynn & Wisbech 19,186 20,529 (1,343) (7.0) 23,023 24,300 (1,277) (5.5) 

Papworth 10,373 10,955 (582) (5.6) 12,447 13,146 (698) (5.6) 

East of England Ambulance 20,988 22,185 (1,196) (5.7) 25,186 26,663 (1,477) (5.9) 

Other Acute 39,627 40,077 (450) (1.1) 50,467 51,747 (1,280) (2.5) 

Subtotal 406,876 419,715 (12,839) (3.2) 490,426 506,843 (16,417) (3.3) 

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES               

Cambs and Pboro FT 56,907 56,990 (83) (0.1) 68,288 68,388 (100) (0.1) 

Other  20,475 20,457 19 0.1 24,570 24,878 (307) (1.3) 

Subtotal 77,382 77,447 (65) (0.1) 92,859 93,266 (407) (0.4) 

COMMUNITY SERVICES               

Cambs Community Services 61,941 62,034 (93) (0.2) 74,330 74,533 (203) (0.3) 

CPFT Pboro childrens 3,262 3,262 (0) (0.0) 3,914 3,914 (0) (0.0) 

Other Community Services 18,122 18,813 (690) (3.8) 21,747 22,256 (509) (2.3) 

Individual Placements 37,760 42,854 (5,093) (13.5) 45,313 51,058 (5,745) (12.7) 

Subtotal 121,086 126,963 (5,877) (4.9) 145,303 151,761 (6,457) (4.4) 

PRIMARY CARE               

GP Prescribing 86,140 89,987 (3,847) (4.5) 103,368 107,339 (3,971) (3.8) 

Prescribing Support 3,122 3,030 92 2.9 3,746 3,776 (29) (0.8) 

Other Primary Care 15,607 14,448 1,159 7.4 19,257 18,548 709 3.7 

Subtotal 104,869 107,465 (2,596) (2.5) 126,372 129,663 (3,291) (2.6) 

Other               

Acuity Reserve 4,558 0 4,558 100.0 5,470 0 5,470 100.0 

Recovery Plan required (3,615) 0 (3,615) 100.0 (4,338) (2,174) (2,164) 49.9 

Subtotal 944 0 944 100.0 1,132 (2,174) 3,306 292.0 

LCG DEVOLVED BUDGETS 711,157 731,590 (20,433) (2.9) 856,091 879,358 (23,267) (2.7) 

CCG CENTRAL BUDGETS                 

Contingency 3,703 0 3,703 100.0 4,444 0 4,444 100.0 

Non recurrent reserve 8,232 2,869 5,363 65.1 9,879 3,444 6,435 65.1 

Non elective reserves 6,531 6,216 315 4.8 7,837 7,041 796 10.2 

Earmarked Reserves 9,755 (282) 10,038 102.9 11,450 (142) 11,592 101.2 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 739,379 740,392 (1,014) (0.1) 889,701 889,701 0 0.0 
 

 

87



34

LCG 2014/15 BUDGETS

88



35

LCG 2014/15 BUDGETS

89



36

FINANCIAL RISKS NOT INCLUDED IN 
THE I&E POSITION

90



37

FINANCE CONCLUSIONS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS

7.  Conclusions 
 

There is a year to date overspend reported at month 10 which on forecast has required further savings schemes of £2.1m to be delivered 
to meet the planned break-even position. The CCG has now identified savings of this magnitude and the beginnings of financial recovery 
can be seen in the month 10 figures. However, this progress needs to continue in order to be more secure about the year end financial 
position. To this end, work is continuing to address and mitigate the adverse financial variances highlighted in the report.   The financial 
position, despite successful delivery of elements of the recovery plan remains tight.  There is no room for non-delivery of the remaining 
elements of the recovery and this message contuinues to be communicated at the appropriate meetings and venues.  

 
8. Recommendation 
 
 The Finance and Performance Committee is asked to note the financial position at month 10, the risks associated with the year end 

forecast and the actions being taken to address these and mitigate the risk of not meeting our  breakeven ( or better) target.  
 
 
 
Author:  Wanda Kerr,  
Title:  Deputy Chief Finance Officer 
Date:  20 January 2015 
 
Reviewed and presented by:    Tim Woods, Chief Fina nce Officer 

91



PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT 
BOARD REPORT(REPORTING PERIOD APR-DEC)

Section eight

38

92



The Programme Management Board (PMB) met on 18th February 2015 to assess the delivery of the 2014/15 QIPP Programme and 
contract status for the Apr-Dec reporting period. PMB agreed the risk assessed status of QIPP and the main Acute contracts as follows:

• The CCG has planned £33.34m QIPP savings in 2014/15 against a Living Within Our Means (LWOM) target of £39.0m (with the 
remaining £5.66M to be delivered through budget risk mitigations).

• The CCG has delivered £15.96m (70%) QIPP against a YTD planned target of £22.90m. Based on the current confidence levels of 
each QIPP Programme and Project Manager, the CCG is forecasting to achieve £21.17m (63% of the £33.34m Programme Plan). 
There is a large difference between current and forecast % achievement due to Programmes not forecasting delivery against 
submitted plans for the remaining 3 months. A deep dive into reporting also identified some areas where reporting could be improved, 
this has impacted on the delivered figure.

• The Month 10 Main Acute Contracting position is reporting a £10.65m YTD overspend and forecasting a £13.17m total overspend in 
2014/15.

• Each locality was asked to revisit their recovery plan ideas to stretch and accelerate them. These plans are summarised in this report 
and enable the CCG to aim to recover the position by circa £10m. £6m of savings have already been delivered, with plans totalling 
£3m still in progress.

• Each system is working on plans for 2015/16 being co-ordinated via the weekly COO meeting. These will focus on several key areas
e.g. urgent care, planned care, mental health, primary care and where possible operate CCG wide to avoid duplication. Each 
programme is aiming to have clinical and management leads to drive delivery.

Overleaf, the 2014/15 Dashboards detail the financial position of each programme and the contract position of the main Acute contracts. 
PMB focused on recovery plans presented by the LCGs which mainly consist of contractual measures. Local Chief Officers attended to 
present their Recovery Plans and agree next steps to mitigate immediate risks.

Executive Summary

TOTAL

£33.34m £22.90m £15.96m £21.17m £12.17m£6.94m

£335.85m £10.65m£346.50m£402.32m £13.17m£415.49m

TOTAL

93



Executive Summary

Challenges remain in many of the QIPP Projects but local teams are currently focusing on delivery their Recovery 

Plans, which includes the expedition of some of these QIPP schemes. This is to ensure that manpower resource is 

targeted to maximum effect.

• The CCG has achieved £15.96m (69.7%) against a YTD target of £22.90m by Month 9. 

• The full year forecast is for a shortfall of £12.17m against the plan of £33.34m.

• The forecast is now signed off by the project teams as part of their project pack submission

94



PROVIDER PROFILES
Section nine

41

95



PSHFT | 1 of 2

42

96



PSHFT | 2 of 2

43

Comments |
Based on the provider profiles created, the following exception reports will be provided:

1. RTT
2. A&E
3. Stroke
4. CQC Status
5. Contract Queries 

97



ER PSHFT 1 | RTT

44

Fig 1.  PSHFT specialities below operating standards in December

Comments | 

The 18 week admitted RTT standard has been met  in December at an aggregated level for all pathways  - admitted (93.5%), non-admitted (95.8%) and 
incomplete (97.0%). 

The specialties that were non-compliant in December:
Admitted : Trauma and Orthopaedics (82.4%)
Non-Admitted: Trauma and Orthopaedics (95.0%), ENT (90.1%), Ophthalmology (90.1%), Plastic Surgery (93.3%),  Gastroenterology (93.5%), Cardiology 
(94.9%) and Neurology (84.2%)
Incomplete: Neurosurgery (87.5%)

What are the root causes?
• non-elective pressures
• impact of the Christmas holiday period.

What are the key actions being taken by the provide r?
• activity is undertaken in the independent sector
• Specialties have been advised to take specific action to avoid a repeat of the situation next month

What are the key actions being taken by the CCG?
• specialty breach penalties have been invoked by the CCG

% 18 wk RTT

Admitted 1

Non Admitted 7

Incomplete 1

98



ER PSHFT 2 | A&E 

45

Fig 1.  PSHFT Daily A&E Attends up to 9th February 2014
Comments |

PHSFT failed to meet the standard in December at 85.2%, a deterioration on 
November and well below the 95% standard.  The figure for January is 81.6%.

What are the root causes?
• Demand for urgent and unplanned care
• Patient flow within the City Hospital site
• Discharge co-ordination and management (including Delayed Transfers of 

Care)

What are the key actions being taken by the provide r?
• Approved targeted investment business cases for expansion of key priority 

areas in A&E Department, Ward Administrators and the Ambulatory 
Emergency Care Unit

• Reassigned clinical staff to commence the expansion in Ambulatory 
Emergency Care

• Accelerated clinical and nursing staff recruitment plans for Emergency & 
Medicine Directorate

• Initiated series of deep dive review meetings with Ward Managers to reduce 
length of stay on our wards

• Launched a set of Internal Operating Standards for A&E and clinical 
specialties

• Reinstated the Emergency Assessment Unit trolleys for GP heralded patients 
and some A&E referrals

• Commenced piloting the part-time introduction of Primary Care clinicians 
within the A&E Department for Minors patient stream in peak hours

What are the key actions being taken by the CCG / S RG?
• Implementation of  the 2014/15 Operational Resilience and Capacity Plan:

• increase integration of services
• reduce patient demand 
• reduce the number of delayed transfers of care

• SRG developments:
• Community-based Rapid Response Service
• Discharge to Assess Beds
• Intermediate Care Beds
• Reductions to Delayed Transfers of Care
• Acute Psychiatric Liaison Service enhancements

Fig 2.  Cumulative A&E performance at PSHFT in 2014/15

99



ER PSHFT 3 | Stroke 

46

Comments |  

There have been improvements in the percentage of patients who were cared for in a dedicated stroke facility indicator. This has 
been achieved through the implementation of a focused action plan which has required the increasing and ring-fencing of stroke 
beds and the repatriation of patients to their local Trust as key actions. Sustainability and further significant improvement in 
performance will be delivered when the department recruits a Stroke Consultant.

100



ER PSHFT 4 | CQC Status

47

Comments |

The CQC made announced visits to PSHFT in March 2014, and carried out an inspection under the new CQC inspection regime.
The CQC gave Good ratings to Surgery, Intensive/critical care, Maternity and family planning, Children’s care, End of life care and 
Outpatients in PCH. Accident and Emergency, and Medical care were rated as Requires Improvement. For S&RH, Accident and 
Emergency, Medical care, Surgery, and Outpatients were rated as Good. Look at the five areas of CQC focus, Safe, Effective and 
Well lead were rated as Requires improvement. 

Overall summary Requires Improvement Accident and emergency Requires Improvement
Safe Requires Improvement Medical care (incl. older people's care Requires Improvement
Effective Requires Improvement Surgery Good
Caring Good Intensive/critical care Good
Responsive Requires Improvement Maternity & family planning Good
Well Led Good

101



ER PSHFT 5 | Contract Queries

48

Contract Queries in line with General Condition 9 
A&E Performance
• A new RAP is in place for the A&E 4 hour performance target. 
• An exception report issued 3rd February 2015 and 2% has been retained until the level of DTOCs is known for the CCG.
• The current RAP agreement is that a 1% penalty will apply if DTOC levels for CPCCG patients are above 3.5%.

Stroke Services 
• The RAP is set to deliver these quality thresholds by 31st January 2015..
• Quality requirements for Stroke services have improved in December, with the target for stroke patients admitted to a stroke ward for 90% of 

the time now being delivered. 

Choose and Book
• 2WW services available via C&B directly bookable services dropped in December from 92% to 88%. 
• A RAP is in place to improve this position by March 2015. 

Cancelled Operation without rebook in 28 days
• The action plan has not delivered sustained improvement, so this will now be closed and a subsequent contract query resent and a new 

remedial action plan agreed with milestones for expected improvement.

Timeliness of SI Reporting
• CQ requested from Quality team as response rates slow
• RAP in place to deliver targets by 31st March. 
• Expectation that this RAP will be closed once Jan performance reported.

Appointment Slot Issue
• RAP due 12th January 2015. 
• Agreed March 2015 for delivery of 5% ASI rate.

Ambulance Handovers in A&E
• Despite Lakeside’s increased capacity in A&E, the ambulance handovers continue to fail. 
• The action plan has not delivered sustained improvement, so this will now be closed and a subsequent contract query resent and a new 

remedial action plan agreed with milestones for expected improvement.

18 Weeks RTT
• Admitted/Non admitted pathways delivered in Nov and Dec at aggregate level but not specialty. 
• Penalties applied.  RAP remains in place.
• PCH flagging some uncertainty with Jan targets.

Mandatory Training
• CQ issued in 13/14 and RAP agreed with March 2015 as milestone for delivering 90% targets.  Monitored in CQR meeting monthly.

102



CCS |

49

Comments |
Based on the provider profiles created, the following exception reports will be provided:
1. CQC Concerns
2. Contract Queries

103



ER CCS 1 | CQC Status

50

Comments |

CCS was inspected by the CQC at the end of May 2014 under the new inspection regime, and the results on the inspection were 
published in August 2014. The CQC gave CCS an overall rating of good. Twenty areas of good practice were given, with a range of 
areas for improvement given in each are assessed. The following four areas require improvement, with three of these non-compliant with 
the CQC regulations:
Community Services for Adults – are services safe? Non-compliant, requires improvement
The CQC raised concerns about staffing levels for district and community nursing teams, whilst noting the initiatives that had been put in 
place since the CQC inspection in February 2014. The Trust is required to continue to develop effective recruitment, caseload
management, and staff support strategies. 
In-patient Services – are services safe? Non-compliant, requires improvement
The CQC noted gaps on the medicines administration records. The Trust is required to ensure there are adequate systems in place to 
monitor and prevent medicines omissions.
In-patient Services – are services effective? Compliant, requires improvement
The CQC raised concerns about compliance with national guidance and staff training for people who have had a stroke. The Trust 
should review the national guidance for stroke care to provide assurance that care delivery meets the needs of the patient and their 
family or carer. A review of training for staff involved in the rehabilitation of stroke patients should be undertaken.
End of Life Care – are services well-led? Non-compliant, requires improvement
The CQC noted that the Trust did not have a unified vision of strategy for end of life care, with no Trust wide policy. Although the Board 
and senior managers had oversight of reported risk, risk in the mortuary had not been monitored and had been overlooked. The Trust 
addressed the concerns regarding the mortuary as soon as this was highlighted during the inspection. The Trust is required to assess 
and monitor the quality of all services provided, to include care after death, so as to protect people using the service and others who may 
be at risk.

Provider Level of concern
CCS Children and 

Families
Community Services 

for Adults
In-patient 
Services

End of Life care Dentistry MIU Overall

Safe Good Requires improvement 
(non-compliant)

Requires 
improvement 

(non-compliant)

Good Good Good Requires 
improvement

Effective Good Good Requires 
improvement

Good Good Good Good

Caring Good Good Good Good Good Good Good
Responsive Good Good Good Good Good Good Good
Well Led Good Good Good Good Good Good Good
Overall Good Good Good Requires 

improvement 
(non-compliant)

Good Good Good

104



ER CCS 2 | Contract Queries

51

Contract Queries in line with General Condition 9

Failure to achieve full payment for Q1 CQUINS
• Meeting was subsequently held and the CCG agreed that CCS could resubmit the three Q1 submissions referred to in the CQN.
• Two of these submissions achieved payment and CCS were informed of this decision.

105



CPFT |  

52

Comments |

Based on the provider profiles created and additional information, the following exception reports will be provided:
1. RTT
2. IAPT
3. CQC Status

Please note, an update on IAPT is provided earlier in the report.

106



ER CPFT 1 | RTT

53

Fig 1.  CPFT specialities below operating standards in December

Comments |

CPFT failed to deliver the non-admitted standard in December (93.1%) with regard to the consultant led children’s element of the
contract.

Community Paediatrics
CPFT are reporting significant recruitment into this service with the appointment of 2 locum paediatricians and a clinical 
psychologist but highlight the growing pressure on non consultant led services which are integral to the child development 
assessment process specifically SALT which is achieving 43.8 % seen within 18 weeks of referral.
No contract query issued as yet, due to the fact that the contract with CPFT was not signed until September 2014 and the data
needed to be validated for the last 2 reports. If there is no improvement in November’s figures a contract query will be issued and 
RAP requested.

Number of specialties Not meeting national standard

% 18 wk RTT

Non Admitted 1

Incomplete 0

107



ER CPFT 2 | IAPT

54
Comments |
Currently ahead of trajectory to meet 15% target.

108



ER CPFT 3 | CQC Status

55

Comments |

The CQC visited Fulbourn Hospital in September 2013, focusing on Mulberry 3 and Springbank wards. A minor concern was 
reported for outcome 7: Safeguarding people who use services from abuse. CPFT has completed the action plan to address the 
CQC concern.

Outcome Level of Concern
7: Safeguarding people who use services from abuse.  Minor – Fulbourn Hospital

109



ER CPFT 4 | Contract Queries

56

Contract Queries in line with General Condition 9

Payment-by-Results (Care Pathways and Pricing)
• MOU reviewed and discussed at CPP Project Board.
• Remedial Actions being undertaken and has been escalated to Finance Directors.
• Potential further escalation will be considered after next Project Board. 
• Implications for 15/16 contract raised with CPFT, some evidence of progress to be reviewed at next Project Board. 

Section 136
• CPFT have issued a Contract Query Notice for over-activity and under resource-requesting additional funding.
• Risk that CPFT will close service.
• Contract Query meeting scheduled for 5 February.
• RAP is in place and this is likely to be resolved via contract negotiations.

CAMH Performance over-activity
• CPFT have issued a Contract query for over performance on CAMH activity levels agreed in contract.
• Contractual Excusing Notice has been return in accordance with General Condition 9 as CPFT have issued Query incorrectly.
• A meeting is required with the CAMH Commissioners and CPFT to agree a referral and activity management plan.
• RAP in place. This is escalated to director level for resolution.

Activity Variance in acute and community services
• Reported bed day activity inconsistent with known bed days.
• Wide under and over performance reported for all community pathways, this is not credible.
• Deep Dive Meeting held 19th November, agreed data to understand the issue be presented at December performance meeting.
• The data was not forthcoming in the December meeting and a Contract Query is being issued 27th January. 
• A RAP was agreed and the Deep Dive Audit report was submitted.  The Report is extremely detailed and does not seem to answer specific  

issues.
• There will be a detailed discussion at the next Contract Performance Meeting as to how this can be resolved. 

110



Papworth | 1 of 2

57

111



Papworth | 2 of 2

58

Comments |

Based on the provider profiles created, the following exception reports will be provided:

1. Cancer
2. HCAI
3. Contract Queries

112



ER Papworth 1 | Cancer 

59

Comments |

62 day standard
Papworth met the above standard (100.0%) in December 
but is below standard year to date (72.2%).

31 day standard 
Papworth did not meet the above standard (94.4%) in 
December but is meeting the standard year to date (96.5%).

Fig 1. 62 day standard

Fig 2. 31 day standard

113



ER Papworth 2  | HCAI 

60

Comments |

MRSA
There were no cases in December.

Clostridium Difficile
There was one case in December.

Fig 1.  Papworth MRSA cases (up to end of December)

Fig 2.  Papworth C Diff cases (up to end of December) 

114



ER Papworth 3 | Contract Queries

61

Contract Queries in line with General Condition 9 

• None raised to date

115



111 | Contract 

62

Activity 
Based on demand to date, activity is forecast to remain within contract of 230,000 answered calls per annum.

Calls to be answered within 60 seconds
This target has been met in the contract year to date with the exception of December 2014, when performance was impacted by the surge in 
demand over the Christmas period.

Emergency Department and Ambulance dispatches
The improvements in both the rate of Emergency Department referrals and the ambulance dispatches can be directly attributed to the 
introduction of pilots for the clinical review of these dispositions. The pilots were mobilised in September 2014 and December 2014 respectively. 
These pilots were introduced offset the high level of risk aversion within NHS 111 Pathways. This having been a particular issue over the 
weekend periods when calls made to the NHS 111 service are higher due to most GP surgeries being closed. To date, it has been challenging 
for the provider, to staff the GP pilot to review ED dispositions. We continue to work with the provider to resolve this issue.

Warm Transfer rate
The performance against the warm transfer target has been restricted due to the service experiencing difficulties in recruiting and retaining 
clinical advisor staff. A remedial action plan has been in place in this respect since July 2014.  We continue to work with the service around the 
difficulties that they experience around recruiting and retaining clinical advisors. This is a problem experienced across our region. 

Call backs
Where it has not been possible to warm transfer patients to a clinical advisor, these patients are required to be called back by the clinical advisor 
within 10 minutes. The service has not met this target in the contract year to date. There is national recognition that the delivery of this target may 
not be feasible, based on performance to date. 

116



Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOC)

63

Comments |

The charts opposite show the numbers of bed days lost to 
DTOC over the past two rolling years. It shows a varied 
picture with CUHFT achieving large reductions in bed 
days lost whilst PSHFT and HHCT have seen increases 
over the same period. 

CUHFT achieved a significant reduction in July 2013 and 
again in March 2014. There has been an increasing trend 
in DToCs between June and December 2014.

PSHFT had a reasonably stable level of bed days lost until 
March 2014 when numbers began to increase. Number of 
bed days lost reached a peak in November 2014.  

HHCT have seen an increasing trend between May 2014 
and September 2014 when DToCs reached their highest 
levels for two years. DTOC bed days have been falling 
since October 2014.

117



T
his page is intentionally left blank

118



Appendix 2

Acronyms used in the integrated delivery report.

CCG – Clinical Commissioning Group CDiff – Colostridium Difficile

LCG – Local Commissioning Group YTD – Year to date

CUHFT – Cambridgeshire Universities 
Hospitals Foundation Trust (Addenbrookes)

EAAST – East Anglian Ambulance Service 
Trust

CPFT – Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
Foundation Trust

UCC – Urgent Care Cambridgeshire

HHCT – Hinchinbrooke Hospital Circle Trust HUC – Hertfordshire Urgent Care

CCS – Cambridgeshire Community Services SIs – Serious Incidents

QEH – Queen Elizabeth Hospital (Kings 
Lynn)

ENT – Ear, Nose and Throat

PSHFT – Peterborough and Stamford 
Hospitals Foundation Trust

COO – Chief Operating Officer

DTOC – Delayed Transfers of Care CEO – Chief Executive Officer

RTT – Referral to Treatment ASI - Available Slot Issues (Choose and 
Book)

A&E – Accident and Emergency FTT - Financial Transaction Tax

IAPT - Improving Access to Psychological 
Therapies

ED – Emergency Department

CQC – Care Quality Commission QIPP - Quality, Innovation, Productivity and 
Prevention

HCAI - Healthcare-associated-infections NHSE – NHS England

EPRR - Emergency Preparedness, 
Resilience and Response

PCT – Primary Care Trust

MRSA - Meticillin-resistant staphylococcus 
aureusis

JCP – Joint care Plan

CHC – Continuing healthcare MIIU – Minor Illness and Injury Unit

LWOM – Living Within Our Means CQUINS - Commissioning for Quality and 
Innovation

MSK – Musculoskeletal DNAs – Did not attends

SHMI - Summary Hospital-level Mortality 
Indicator

MOU - memorandum of understanding

AF - Atrial fibrillation Y/E FOT – Year End Forecast

VTE - Venous thromboembolism

119



This page is intentionally left blank

120



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 9

10 MARCH 2015 Public Report

Report of the Director of Governance

Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

FORWARD PLAN OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This is a regular report to the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues outlining the content of the 
Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Commission identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions is attached at Appendix 1.  The 
Plan contains those Executive decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the 
Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new Executive decisions to be taken 
after 20 March 2015.

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions provides the Commission with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these Executive 
decisions, or to request further information.

3.3 If the Commission wished to examine any of the Executive decisions, consideration would need 
to be given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme.

3.4 As the Forward Plan is published fortnightly any version of the Forward Plan published after 
dispatch of this agenda will be tabled at the meeting.

4. CONSULTATION

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions.

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

None

6. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of  Executive Decisions

121



This page is intentionally left blank

122



PETERBOROUGH CITY 
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 
OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 

PUBLISHED:  20 FEBRUARY 2015

123



FORWARD PLAN                                                                                                                                     AB
PART 1 – KEY DECISIONS
In the period commencing 28 days after the date of publication of this Plan, Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set out below in 
Part 1.  Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 and/or have a significant impact 
on two or more wards in Peterborough.

If the decision is to be taken by an individual Cabinet Member, the name of the Cabinet Member is shown against the decision, in addition to details of the Councillor’s portfolio. If 
the decision is to be taken by the Cabinet, this too is shown against the decision and its members are as listed below:
Cllr Cereste (Leader); Cllr Elsey; Cllr Fitzgerald; Cllr Hiller, Cllr Holdich (Deputy Leader); Cllr North; Cllr Seaton; Cllr Serluca and Cllr Scott.

This Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions for the forthcoming month and it will be updated on a fortnightly basis to reflect new key-decisions.  Each new 
Plan supersedes the previous Plan and items may be carried over into forthcoming Plans.  Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form 
which appears at the back of the Plan and submitted to Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 
08702 388039). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268.

PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISION IN PRIVATE
Whilst the majority of the Executive’s business at the Cabinet meetings listed in this Plan will be open to the public and media organisations to attend, there will be some business 
to be considered that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information.  In these circumstances the meeting may be held in private, and on the 
rare occasion this applies, notice will be given within Part 2 of this document, ‘notice of intention to hold meeting in private’. A further formal notice of the intention to hold the 
meeting, or part of it, in private, will also be given 28 clear days in advance of any private meeting in accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed (unless a notice of intention to hold the meeting in private has 
been given).

PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS
For complete transparency relating to the work of the Executive, this Plan also includes an overview of non-key decisions to be taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members, 
these decisions are listed at Part 3 and will be updated on a weekly basis.

You are entitled to view any documents listed on the Plan, or obtain extracts from any documents listed or subsequently submitted to the decision maker prior to the decision 
being made, subject to any restrictions on disclosure. There is no charge for viewing the documents, although charges may be made for photocopying or postage.  Documents 
listed on the notice and relevant documents subsequently being submitted can be requested from Gemma George, Senior Governance Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, 
Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 388038), e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. For each decision a public report will 
be available from the Governance Team one week before the decision is taken. 

All decisions will be posted on the Council's website: www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedecisions.  If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key decisions' 
outlined in this Plan, please submit them to the Governance Support Officer using the form attached.  For your information, the contact details for the Council's various service 
departments are incorporated within this Plan.

124

mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedecisions


PART 1 – FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

KEY DECISIONS FROM 20 MARCH 2015
KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Section 75 Agreement 
Better Care Fund – 
KEY/20MAR15/01
To approve the Section 75 
Better Care Fund 
agreement with the CCG.

Councillor 
Marco Cereste
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Strategic 
Planning, 
Housing, 
Economic 
Development 
and Business 
Engagement

March 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Will Patten It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

PREVIOUSLY ADVERTISED DECISIONS
Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Dickens Street 
Car Park - KEY/03JUL/11
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Executive Director – 
Strategic Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate and 
conclude the sale of Dickens 
Street Car Park. 
For Cabinet to consider 
future options for service 
delivery.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate.

Richard Hodgson
Head of Strategic 
Projects
Tel: 01733 384535
richard.hodgson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

125



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Sale of the Herlington 
Centre - 
KEY/21MAR14/03
Delivery of the Council’s 
capital receipts 
programme through the 
sale of the Herlington 
Centre, Orton Malborne.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Simon Webber
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384545
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Peterborough City 
Council Customer 
Strategy 2014 - 
KEY/21MAR14/06
To approve the Customer 
Strategy. The vision is to 
provide a range of high-
quality services whilst 
maximising customer 
satisfaction and delivering 
these services through 
different channels at the 
lowest reasonable cost, 
whilst also reducing or 
diverting demand.

Cabinet June 2015 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Adrian Chapman
Assistant Director for 
Communities and 
Targeted Services
Tel: 01733 863887
Adrian.chapman@pete
rborough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Formalise Integrated 
Community Equipment 
Service Funding and 
Commissioning 
Arrangements - 
KEY/18APR14/01
To formalise integrated 
community equipment 
service joint funding 
arrangements.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

March 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Nick Blake
Head of 
Commissioning for 
Older People, Physical 
Disabilities and 
Sensory Impairment
Tel: 01733 452406
nick.blake@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

126



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Award of Contract for 
Build of a Waste 
Transfer Station - 
KEY/18APR14/02
To award a contract for 
the build of a waste 
transfer station.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Street Scene, 
Waste 
Management and 
Communications

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Paul Robertson
Waste Project Officer
Tel: 01733 864740
paul.robertson@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Award of Contract for 
Provision of a 
Household Recycling 
Centre - 
KEY/18APR14/03
To award a contract for 
the provision of a 
household recycling 
centre.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Street Scene, 
Waste 
Management and 
Communications

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Paul Robertson
Waste Project Officer
Tel: 01733 864740
paul.robertson@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Print Managed Services 
- KEY/13JUN14/01
To enable Council officers to 
be able to print, copy and 
scan.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ricky Fuller
Head of Strategic 
Commissioning/Transfo
rmation
Tel: 01733 452482
ricky.fuller@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

127



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Southfields Primary 
School Expansion - 
KEY/05SEP14/01
To authorise the 
construction of an 
extension to 
accommodate the 
expansion of Southfields 
Primary School.

Councillor John 
Holdich
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 2015 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Emma Everitt
Project Support Officer
Tel: 01733 863660
emma.everitt@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Fit to Rent Scheme – 
KEY/17OCT14/01
To improve standards and 
management of properties 
in the private rented 
sector.

Cabinet September 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Belinda Child
Housing Strategic 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863769
Belinda.child@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

128



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Future of Solar and 
Wind Projects – 
KEY/14NOV14/01
To approve the cessation 
of the solar/wind projects 
at Newborough Farm and 
Morris Fen and to update 
Members in respect of 
America Farm.

Cabinet 23 February 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

John Harrison
Executive Director  
Resources
Tel: 01733 452520
John.harrison@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Residential Care – 
KEY14/19NOV14/01
To seek authority for the 
Director of Adult Social Care 
to make residential care 
placements outside of the 
Council’s contract 
regulations whilst a long term 
solution to purchasing 
residential care is developed.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

March 2015 Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Rob Henchy
Commissioning 
Manager
Tel: 01733 452429
Rob.henchy@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Extra Care Housing – 
KEY/12DEC14/02
To approve the award of 
contracts to provide 
personal care and support 
at five extra care 
schemes.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

March 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Residents and 
carers, housing 
providers, care 
providers and 
relevant internal 
departments.

Nick Blake
Head of 
Commissioning
Tel: 01733 452486
Nickolas.blake@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

129



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Advocacy Services – 
KEY/12DEC14/03
To approve the award of 
contract for the adult 
social care advocacy 
services.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

March 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

People utilising 
the services, 
partnership 
boards and 
relevant internal 
departments.

Nick Blake
Head of 
Commissioning
Tel: 01733 452486
Nickolas.blake@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Hampton Gardens 
Secondary School – 
KEY/12DEC14/04
To approve the award of 
the contract for the design 
and build of the school.

Councillor John 
Holdich 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

June 2015 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Emma Everitt
Project Officer (Schools 
Infrastructure)
Tel: 01733 863660
Emma.everitt@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Council Server Estate - 
KEY/26DEC14/01
To approve the move of 
on-site Council servers to 
an off-site provider. 

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Godfrey
ICT Strategy, 
Infrastructure and 
Programmes Manager
Tel: 01733 317989
richard.godfrey@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

130



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Nene Park Academy – 
KEY/06JAN15/01
Novation of the Design 
and Build Contract from 
PCC to Cambridge 
Meridian Academies Trust 
(CMAT).

Councillor John 
Holdich
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 2015 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Howard
Head of Schools 
Infrastructure
Tel: 01733 863976
Brian.howard@peterbo
rough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Turning Point Extension 
Contract – 
KEY/06JAN15/03
To approve the supported 
living contract that permits 
for another one year 
extension for 2015/16.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

April 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Mubarak Darbar
Head of 
Commissioning 
Learning Disabilities
Tel: 01733 452509
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

S75 Learning Disabilities 
(Renew with CPCCG) – 
KEY/06JAN15/04
To approve the new S75 
agreement.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

April 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Mubarak Darbar
Head of 
Commissioning 
Learning Disabilities
Tel: 01733 452509
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

131



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Day Opportunities Under 
65 Transformation (In 
House) – 
KEY/06JAN15/05
To approve proposals 
following consultation.

Cabinet 20 March 
2015

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Mubarak Darbar
Head of 
Commissioning 
Learning Disabilities
Tel: 01733 452509
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Day Opportunities Under 
65 Tender (Independent) 
– KEY/06JAN15/06
To approve the tender for 
the services. 

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Adult Social 
Care

August 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Mubarak Darbar
Head of 
Commissioning 
Learning Disabilities
Tel: 01733 452509
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

West Town Primary 
School - 
KEY/06JAN15/07
To authorise payment of 
the Council’s contribution 
to the rebuild of West 
Town Primary School 
under the Priority Schools 
Building Programme.

Councillor John 
Holdich
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 2015 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Alison Chambers
Principal Assets Officer 
(Schools)
Tel: 01733 863975 
Alison.chambers@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

132



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2015-2025 (Feb) 
– KEY/06JAN15/11
To recommend the MTFS 
including the second 
tranche of budget 
proposals to Council.

Cabinet 23 February 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Steven Pilsworth
Head of Strategic 
Finance
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Peterborough Visitor 
Economy Strategy 2015-
2020 (Draft) – 
KEY/06JAN15/13
To approve the strategy 
and recommend that 
Council adopt as a major 
policy document.

Cabinet 20 March 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Douglas Gyte
Strategic Tourism 
Manager
Tel: 01733 453490
Douglas.gyte@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.133



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Developer Contributions 
Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) – 
KEY/06JAN15/14
For Cabinet to approve 
the supplementary 
planning document.

Cabinet April 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brendan Troy
Principal Infrastructure 
& Monitoring Officer
Tel: 01733 863773
Brendan.troy@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Extension to the Adult 
Community Drug 
Services and Alcohol 
Misuse Services 
Contract (Crime 
Reduction Initiatives) – 
KEY/06FEB15/01
To extend the contract for 
a further 12 months.

Councillor Nigel 
North
Cabinet Member 
for Communities 
and 
Environment 
Capital

March 2015 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Oliver Hayward
Head of Business 
Management
Tel: 01733 863910
Oliver.hayward@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Extension to the Public 
Health Services Contract 
(Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough 
Foundation Trust) – 
KEY/06FEB15/02 
To extend the contract to 
31 March 2016.

Councillor 
Marco Cereste
Leader and 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Strategic 
Planning, 
Housing, 
Economic 
Development 
and Business 
Engagement

March 2015 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Oliver Hayward
Head of Business 
Management
Tel: 01733 863910
Oliver.hayward@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Street Scene Services – 
KEY/13FEB15/01
To approve investment in a 
number of areas in order to 
move to a more efficient and 
cost effective service.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Street Scene, 
Waste 
Management and 
Communications

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Proposals formed 
part of Phase 1 
budget document 
public consultation.

James Collingridge
Amey Partnership 
Manager 
james.collingridge@peter
borough.gov.uk
01733 864736

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

134



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Parks, Trees and Open 
Spaces – 
KEY/13FEB15/02
To approve the changes to 
the way services relating to 
the city’s parks, trees and 
open spaces are provided.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Street Scene, 
Waste 
Management and 
Communications

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Proposals formed 
part of Phase 1 
budget document 
public consultation.

James Collingridge
Amey Partnership 
Manager 
james.collingridge@peter
borough.gov.uk
01733 864736

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Classroom Extension 
and Associated Works 
Heltwate School - 
KEY/06MAR15/01
To authorise the construction 
of an extension at Heltwate 
School and give authority to 
the Executive Director of 
Resources to award the 
construction contract within 
the approved budget.

Councillor John 
Holdich
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 2015 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Alison Chambers
Assets and School 
Place Planning Officer
Tel: 01733 863975
Alison.chambers@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Cardea Community 
Pavillion – 
KEY/06MAR15/02
Award of contract for the 
construction of a 
Community Pavillion on 
the Cardea site, including 
the approval of property, 
legal and financial 
arrangements for various 
enabling agreements with 
third parties. 

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Howard
Head of Schools 
Infrastructure
Tel: 01733 863979
Brian.howard@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

135



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Future Model for 
Peterborough Libraries 
– KEY/06MAR15/03
To approve the future 
model for libraries.

Cabinet 20 March 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Lisa Roberts
Culture and 
Partnership Manager
Tel: 01733 452386
Lisa.roberts@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk   

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Amey Phase 2 Budget 
Savings – 
KEY/06MAR15/04
To confirm the Phase 2 
budget savings.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Dominic Hudson
Strategic Partnerships 
Manager
01733 452384
Dominic.hudson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Serco Phase 2 Budget 
Savings – 
KEY/06MAR15/05
To confirm the Phase 2 
budget savings.

Councillor David 
Seaton

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Dominic Hudson
Strategic Partnerships 
Manager
01733 452384
Dominic.hudson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Vivacity Phase 2 Budget 
Savings – 
KEY/06MAR15/06
To confirm the Phase 2 
budget savings.

Councillor Lucia 
Serluca

March 2015 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Dominic Hudson
Strategic Partnerships 
Manager
01733 452384
Dominic.hudson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

136



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

St Michaels Expansion – 
KEY/06MAR15/07
Award of contract for the 
expansion of St Michaels 
Church School to a 2FE, 
including the approval of 
property, legal and 
financial arrangements for 
various enabling 
agreements and third 
parties.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Howard
Head of Schools 
Infrastructure
01733 863976
Brian.howard@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Fletton Quays – 
KEY/06MAR15/08
Disposal of Fletton Quays 
land and property assets 
to Peterborough 
Investment Partnership.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Hodgson, 
Head of Strategic 
Projects
01733 384535
Richard.hodgson@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Pleasure Fair Meadow – 
KEY/06MAR15/09
Disposal of Pleasure Fair 
Meadow Car Park to 
Peterborough Investment 
Partnership.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Hodgson, 
Head of Strategic 
Projects
01733 384535
Richard.hodgson@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Wirrina Car Park – 
KEY/06MAR15/10
Disposal of Wirrina Car 
Park to Peterborough 
Investment Partnership.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Hodgson, 
Head of Strategic 
Projects
01733 384535
Richard.hodgson@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

137



PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISIONS IN PRIVATE

KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN IN PRIVATE

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

NONE AT THE CURRENT TIME

138



PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS

NON-KEY DECISIONS 

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Flood Risk Management 
Strategy
To approve the Strategy 
and recommend its 
adoption to Council.

Cabinet April 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Julia Chatterton
Flood and Water 
Management Officer
Tel: 01733 452620
Julia.chatterton@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Peterborough 
Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
Charging Schedule 
For Cabinet to approve 
the Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
Charging Schedule and 
recommend its adoption 
by Council.

Cabinet April 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brendan Troy
Principal Infrastructure 
& Monitoring Officer
Tel: 01733 863773
Brendan.troy@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Introduction of a Respite 
Care Policy for Adults
To approve the 
introduction of a respite 
policy for adults who are 
eligible for social care 
services.

Councillor 
David Seaton
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 2015 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Kim Sawyer
Director of Governance
Tel: 01733 452361
Kim.sawyer@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

139



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Personal Budgets in 
Peterborough
To agree to adopt 
Peterborough’s Personal 
Budget Policy Statement 
as part of the revised 
statutory duties that apply 
to the Council as part of 
the SEND reforms, under 
the Children and Families 
Act 2014.

Councillor 
John Holdich
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 2015 Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Carrie Gamble
Commissioner
Tel: 01733 863931
Carrie.gamble@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Post 16 Transport Policy
To approve updates to the 
Post 16 Transport policy.

Councillor 
John Holdich
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 2015 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Sara Thompson
Team Manager 
(Passenger Transport 
Operations)
Tel: 01733 317452
Sarah.thompson@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

140



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Hampton Gardens 
Secondary School – 
Collaboration 
Agreement
To approve entering into 
the relevant funding, 
collaboration and 
operation agreements with 
Cambridgeshire County 
Council.

Councillor 
John Holdich
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 2015 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Emma Everitt
Project Officer (Schools 
Infrastructure)
Tel: 01733 863660
Emma.everitt@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will by any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Culture Strategy – 
For Cabinet to approve 
the Strategy and 
recommend it to Council 
for adoption.

Cabinet 23 February 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Douglas Gyte
Strategic Tourism 
Manager
Tel: 01733 453490

It is not anticipated that there 
will by any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Sale of Greenwood 
House 
Delivery of the Council’s 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
sale of Greenwood House, 
South Parade.

Councillor 
David Seaton
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 2015 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Simon Webber
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384545
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

141



DIRECTORATE RESPONSIBILITIES

RESOURCES DEPARTMENT Executive Director's Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Strategic Finance
Internal Audit
Schools Infrastructure (Assets and School Place Planning)
Corporate Property
Waste and Energy
Strategic Client Services (Enterprise Peterborough / Vivacity / SERCO including Customer Services, ICT and Business Support)

CHILDREN’S SERVICES DEPARTMENT Executive Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB
Safeguarding Family and Communities
Education 
School Improvement
Special Educational Needs / Inclusion and the Pupil Referral Service

ADULT SOCIAL CARE Executive Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Care Services Delivery (Assessment and Care Management and Integrated Learning Disability Services) 
Mental Health
Public Health (including Health Performance Management)

COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB
Strategic Commissioning 
Safer Peterborough, Cohesion, Social Inclusion and Neighbourhood Management

GOVERNANCE DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Communications
Legal and Governance Services 
HR Business Relations (Training and Development, Occupational Health and Reward and Policy)
Strategic Regulatory Services
Performance Management

  GROWTH AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT Director’s Office Stuart House, St Johns Street, Peterborough, PE1 5DD
Strategic Growth and Development Services
Strategic Housing
Planning Transport and Engineering (Development Management, Construction and Compliance, Infrastructure Planning and Delivery, Network
Management and Passenger Transport)
Commercial Operations (Strategic Parking and Commercial CCTV, City Centre, Markets and Commercial Trading and Tourism)

142



THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

143



T
his page is intentionally left blank

144


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2015
	5. Public Health Delivery and Commissioning Work Across the Communities Directorate
	5. Appendix 1 - Portfolio Progress Public Health Activities - SCHI - 150310

	6. Adult Social Care - One Year On
	7. Adult Social Care and Public Health - 2014/15 Performance Report
	7. Appendix 1 QTR 3 ASC Performance 23022015  - SCHI - 150310
	7. Appendix 2 - QTR 3 Public Health Performance Report - SCHI - 150310

	8. Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report
	8. Appendix 1 - Integrated Delivery Report  - SCHI - 150310
	8. Appendix 2  - Acronyms used in the CCG integrated delivery report

	9. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions
	9. Appendix 1 - Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 20 March 2015 - SCHI - 150310


